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Welcome to the Trust’s Annual Report for April 2007 to March 2008. 

This year has seen the Trust bounce back from two extremely testing years. We achieved 
fi nancial balance in the year 07/08 and were proud to publish a service strategy containing 
extremely exciting ideas and plans for the future of NHS services in Northern Devon. 

This annual report aims to give a fl avour of some of the developments and improvements we 
have made to services over the last year. Whilst the journey back to being a top performing 
hospital has been tough and particularly hard on staff, it has also been rewarding as this Trust 
now has a clear direction – as outlined in its service strategy – and the highly skilled staff 
groups to get us there.

The methodology for producing a service strategy required us to analyse every department 
in the Trust. Staff and patients were involved right from the beginning in telling us what 
challenges lay ahead for their service, what new technology we could use and what 
expectations patients had. A report was produced for each service which was then shared 
with our patients, partners, staff and our commissioner, the Devon Primary Care Trust, to get 
feedback on our services and additional ideas on how we could improve. 

Now at the heart of this Trust is a commitment to meet the wishes of the people of Northern 
Devon and continue to develop local health services. We will invest in services which are 
convenient and accessible. Patients will be offered appointments in clinics, their own homes, 
hospitals and doctors’ surgeries. Our staff will make sure everyone involved in a patient’s care 
shares information, so care is tailored to that person’s needs. 

In 2007, the Trust made substantial advances in clinical quality and fi nancial control. Our 
MRSA and Clostridium diffi cile infection rates were well within the national limits. Our 
patient survey reported that over 90% of patients were satisfi ed with the services offered, 
commending our focus on privacy and dignity. These, along with many other signs of rising 
standards, have given us great confi dence in our future and in our ability to realise our goals.

In 2008, we will continue to improve. We are one of the fi rst Trusts to get waiting times down 
to 18 weeks and have been asked to go one step better and get waiting lists down to 11 
weeks before most other Trusts in the country. Our team of keyhole surgeons is pioneering 
the latest techniques in surgery meaning patients are recovering from operations much more 
quickly.  

We achieved great things last year because we focused on our priorities, which has meant 
that we have been able to do what we said we’d do: improve services for patients.

2008/09 sees the NHS celebrate its 60th anniversary. Each hospital in Northern Devon is 
sharing this celebration with its local community through a series of open days and events. 
We hope that you have time to visit your local NHS hospital to see just how the NHS has 
changed over the years and look back with pride on the achievements of all our staff

Jac Kelly     Brian Sherwin

Chief Executive    Chairman

IntroductionIntroduction
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Key dates
1 October 2006 The 6 Devon Primary Care Trust’s in Devon merge  
 into one Devon Primary Care Trust (PCT).

1 October 2006 Community services in North Devon (previously  
 managed by North Devon PCT) transfer to the   
 management of the Northern Devon Healthcare  
 Trust (in addition to its management of the   
 North Devon District Hospital). This transfer is called  
 Vertical Integration.

1 April 2008 Devon’s adult social services are integrated with the  
 NHS’s community services. A joint health and social  
 care appointment is made to the Trust’s Board.

The Northern Devon Healthcare Trust was established in 1991 to provide 
hospital healthcare services to the 165,000 local residents and the 
thousands of visitors this region receives every summer.

After October 2006, the Northern Devon Healthcare Trust became 
responsible for the management of and services provided in the 
following buildings

Barnstaple Health Centre  Bideford Community Hospital
Holsworthy Community Hospital Ilfracombe Community Hospital
Lynton Resource Centre  North Devon District Hospital
South Molton Community Hospital Torrington Community Hospital

The full range of acute, community and social care services provided by 
this Trust make it almost unique in the UK. We offer undifferentiated 
24/7 emergency care service and a full range of elective secondary care 
services, such as orthopaedics, colorectal ‘key hole’ surgery, acute stroke 
care and cancer services at North Devon District Hospital. Our community 
teams provide a full range of district nursing, community nursing, 
physiotherapy and occupational therapy, sexual health and family 
planning services. These community services were further strengthened 
by the integration with adult social care services in 2008. More and more 
care is being provided in community settings and this Trust is ideally 
structured to tailor services to be individual to each patient.

Northern Devon Healthcare Trust is run by the Trust Board which meets 
regularly to set strategy and receive assurance that standards are being 
met by those managing the day to day operations.

The Trust Board is chaired by Brian Sherwin, and alongside him sit fi ve 
Executive Directors and fi ve part-time Non-Executive Directors – local 
people who provide a direct link with their communities and who bring 
skills and knowledge from outside into the NHS. 

In 2007, we welcomed Jane Reynolds as a Non-Exective Director and  
were delighted that June Lake was re-appointed to serve another 
term as the ‘patient’s champion’ on the Non-Executive team.

The Chief Executive and four other directors are responsible for  
running the Trust on a day-to-day basis.

The full range of 
acute, community 
and social care 
services provided by 
this Trust make it 
almost unique in the 
UK. 

Recent historyRecent history
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Trust background

The area

Northern Devon has a population of around 165,000, dispersed across 
950 square miles. This resident population rises every year with 250,000 
visitors. The area is a popular retirement destination and has a third 
more older people than the national average. Earnings are 15% below 
the UK average and there are signifi cant housing problems for working 
families due to the affordability gap created by the arrival of relatively 
affl uent retirees and by the number of second homes.

The main acute hospital in Barnstaple, North Devon District Hospital 
(NDDH), is particularly isolated from other major centres of acute care. 
The Royal Devon & Exeter Hospital (RD&E) in Exeter and Musgrove 
Park Hospital in Taunton are both 50 miles away; Derriford Hospital in 
Plymouth is 100 miles away.

The population

Planners expect the Northern Devon population will rise by 20,000 by 
2020 – mainly in the over-65 age group. There are stark differences in 
life expectancy compared to the rest of Devon. The Devon Primary Care 
Trust’s (PCT) Strategic Review identifi es an 18-year gap in life expectancy 
between the most deprived areas in Northern Devon and the least 
deprived areas in Devon. Some of the most deprived communities are in 
Ilfracombe, Torridge and Barnstaple.

The Trust

Northern Devon Healthcare Trust (NDHT) has a total of 280 acute beds 
and 120 community beds across these sites. It employs just over 2000 
staff and operates with an annual budget of £108.5m.

The Trust has a total 
of 280 acute beds 
and 120 community 
beds.

It employs just 
over 2000 staff and 
operates with an 
annual budget of 
£108.5m

Map showing the local Minor Injury Units (MIU) and Accident and Emergency (A&E) 
centres in North Devon.
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We have embedded 
the Equal 
Opportunities Policy 
and the Race Equality 
Scheme in all our 
Human Resources 
practices and 
services.

Ensuring fairness
The Trust is committed to ensuring that all employees are treated fairly 
and equitably. To this end, we have embedded the Equal Opportunities 
Policy and the Race Equality Scheme in all our Human Resources 
practices and services. The Trust has achieved the national ‘two ticks’ 
award covering job applicants and employees with disabilities.

The Trust co-ordinates a multi-agency Equality and Diversity group 
which is attended by patient and carer representatives, Devon PCT, 
the local authority and Devon and Cornwall constabulary. The Trust is 
working towards the goals set out by the ‘Vital Connections’ equalities 
framework for the NHS.

Involving staff
The Trust uses many methods to make sure staff are kept up-to-date 
with, and involved in, developments across the Trust. These include:

Routine posting of important information on Tarkanet, the Trust’s  
intranet

An ‘Ask the Executive’ email system where staff can request answers  
on any issue about which they have concerns

A weekly Chief Executive’s Bulletin carrying brief synopses of  
important issues 

Ad hoc ‘Staff Express’ briefi ngs which highlight urgent  
developments, primarily to ensure staff hear news before it appears 
in the media

Regular meetings of the Joint Negotiating and Consultation  
Committee – where issues are shared, discussed and later resolved

A bi-monthly Staff Forum, chaired by the Chief Executive, which  
brings together a cross-section of staff from around the Trust to 
provide more contact between Executives, managers, doctors, staff 
and administrators from all departments within the Trust. It is a 
valuable opportunity to test out ideas and hear feedback from staff. 

Monthly Heads of Department meetings to share forthcoming  
developments with all the line managers within the Trust. 

Frequent information campaigns such as Infection Control and  
appraisal and training.

Roadshows and other face-to-face meetings to allow important  
issues to be discussed. Last year approximately 50 roadshows and 
staff/stakeholder briefi ng sessions were held with each department 
and hospital ward to discuss the Service Strategy and get our staff’s 
input into the vision and future for each service provided by the 
Trust.
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The Trust achieved  fi nancial balance without cutting any services or disinvestment.

Good progress  made in the annual ‘Healthcheck’. This year we expect to receive a 
good-fair rating for the quality of services and the use of resources, respectively.

The Trust’s maternity services are rated as one of the  best in the country by the 
Healthcare Commission. In a detailed and tough survey, the Healthcare Commission 
rated NDHT’s maternity service as providing women with a high quality, safe service 
where plenty of choice and information was offered in a modern ward environment.

The Healthcare Commission published a report putting the Northern Devon Healthcare  
Trust in the top 10 of most improved Trusts between 2007 and 2008.

A  new mission statement for the Trust was created. The statement: “Best Care, Highest 
Standards, Right Place.” is supported by ten strategic objectives, giving a framework for 
the Trust to develop its services. 

The Trust published ‘Our Ambitions 2008-2013’ setting out its vision and strategic  
direction for the future.

Highlights of the yearHighlights of the year
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Trust drives waiting times down to      
18 weeks
In July 2007 the Trust embarked on a drive to ensure that by the end of 
2008, no patient waited more than 18 weeks for hospital treatment. This 
drive was so successful that the Trust achieved this target months early 
and was nationally recognised for having some of the shortest waiting 
times in the country. This achievement stands us in good stead to meet 
the ultimate waiting time target of 8 weeks by 2010.

Although most patients continue to be seen at North Devon District 
Hospital (NDDH), the community hospitals run by the Trust are also 
increasingly important for both out-patient appointments and provision 
of care. 

One of the fi rst steps we took to achieve shorter waiting times was to 
set up another operating theatre on the NDDH site, so patients could 
get their operations more quickly. The Vanguard theatre unit includes 
a mini-ward so patients can come in on the day of their operation, be 
prepared, have the surgery and recover without having to leave the 
unit. 

The majority of patients using the new theatre came in for eye 
operations, with cataract-removal the most common. The Trust hopes to 
extend this to offer joint-injections for orthopaedic patients and hernia 
repairs in future. In order to achieve the waiting time target in 2008, 
the Trust also provided more theatre sessions in the evening and at 
weekends. 

Our achievementsOur achievements

The Trust achieved 
the 18 week target 
months early and was 
nationally recognised 
for having some of 
the shortest waiting 
times in the country. 

Patient card to track their treatment through the 18 week pathway



Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust

9

The 18-week ‘clock’ for patients starts at the moment their referral is 
sent by the GP and received by a consultant or department. It stops 
when the patient starts treatment. One of the challenges is to make sure 
patients who need treatment most urgently are seen quickest, while 
those with less-urgent conditions are still seen within the 18 weeks. 

Making sure the Trust provides an excellent service also relies on patients 
turning up to appointments or cancelling them with enough notice 
so we can offer the slot to someone else. In 2007 – 2008, on average, 
more than 600 people a month failed to turn up to appointments which 
increased the wait for other patients as well as wasting around £65,000 
per month. 

The NHS has already made strong progress in reducing waiting times. 
A few years ago, patients were commonly waiting over a year for 
operations after being put on the waiting list. Now the maximum wait is 
six months, with the average being three or four months. 

The more complicated process of redesigning services to keep waiting 
times down - especially with an ageing population and rising demand – 
also started in 2007. The planned £23.5m refurbishment of North Devon 
District Hospital will be instrumental in improving the space available for 
various departments, in line with the redesigned services. 

As a patient, these tips will help you, help us and help other patients: 

If you can’t attend an appointment at hospital, please let us know  
as soon as possible so we can offer the place to someone else. 
The number to call will be on your booking letter. If you can’t call 
yourself, please ask a relative or friend. 

Please be ready for your treatment by making arrangements  
beforehand for things like care of pets and transport to hospital, 
or for someone to look after your home if you will need to stay 
overnight. 

Before your appointment please think of any questions you might  
need to ask, and bring a pen and paper to write down the answers. 
This is particularly important now that treatment can sometimes 
start almost immediately. 

Infection Control rates down across the 
Trust
Infection Prevention & Control continues to be one of the highest 
priorities for the Trust and our patients. 

Clostridium diffi cile
Reduced rates of Clostridium diffi cile in 2006 were maintained into 
2007-08. The Devon Primary Care Trust set the Trust a target of no more 
than 174 cases in those over 65 years of age for 2007-08. There were a 
total of 99 cases for this year, well below the target. 

MRSA
The Department of Health’s target to reduce MRSA bacteraemias by 
50% by 2007-08 meant that the limit for the Trust was reduced to 12. 
The Trust failed to stay within this limit, recording fi fteen bacteraemias 
for 2007-2008. Six (40%) of these were related to infections acquired 

In 2007 – 2008, on 
average, more than 
600 people a month 
failed to turn up to 
appointments which 
increased the wait 
for other patients 
as well as wasting 
around £65,000 per 
month. 
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outside the Trust. However there were only 6 bacteraemias in the second 
half of the year which is within the limit set. Of the bacteraemias related 
to infections acquired inside the Trust the largest numbers are related 
to infections of lines (both central and peripheral lines) and urinary 
catheters. The Trust has implemented the Saving Lives programme to 
specifi cally address these areas.

In 2007, the Trust saw a continued rise in the overall rate of hand 
hygiene compliance across the Trust. Hand hygiene compliance is one 
of the cornerstones of good infection control practice. Our Infection 
Control Policy placed responsibility on every single member of staff 
to remind their colleagues to wash their hands. The Trust conducted 
an audit of staff hand washing and found that overall compliance 
rose steadily over the year from 72% to 89%. Analysis of staff groups 
showed that the compliance of nurses was very good, rising from 81% 
to 93%. Doctors are rapidly improving - from 63% to 81% - and we 
expect more consistent compliance by next year. The Trust aspires to 
continually improve infection control rates as the Trust approaches 
100% compliance. 

On the entrance to every ward and department, notices displayed 
that ward’s performance for handwashing and the Trust’s overall 
performance in controlling infections in C.diffi cile and MRSA. Patients 
could view the results which are updated monthly and are encouraged 
to ask all staff to wash their hands.

The Trust is compliant with the Infection Prevention & Control element 
of Standard 4a of Standards for Better Health.  The Trust self assess 
against these standards and reports to the Healthcare Commission. 
Standard 4a includes compliance with the ‘Code of Practice for the 
Prevention and Control of Health Care Associated Infections’ (part of the 
Health Act 2006).  

Since year end, we have been given a limit of 12 cases of MRSA 
bacteraemia for 2008-09 which we are currently on target to achieve. 
In addition, the Trust is currently trialling new MRSA rapid screening 
technology on the MAU ward. This is with a view to achieving the 
Government’s requirement of screening all patients on arrival in hospital 
by March 2011.

In the future, the Trust’s Estates Strategy includes a commitment to 
increase the number of single rooms available to help us with the 
control of infections. The Northern Devon Healthcare Trust’s hospitals 
are clean and safe with staff and policies dedicated to making it even 
better.

Healthcare Commission names North 
Devon as one of the most improved 
Trusts in England
In 2007, a report from the Healthcare Commission (HCC) put the 
Northern Devon Healthcare Trust in the top ten for progress between 
2006/07 and 2007/08.

The HCC is the health watchdog in England. It keeps check on health 
services to ensure that they are meeting standards in a range of 
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areas. The Commission also promotes improvements in the quality 
of healthcare and public health in England through independent, 
authoritative, patient-centred assessments of those who provide 
services.

Only two other hospital Trusts featured in the top ten, with the 
remainder of organisations being Mental Health Trusts or Primary Care 
Trusts, which commission care and run community services. 

Northern Devon’s submission to the HCC formed the basis of the 2008 
Annual Health Check results. The Trust demonstrated that it met all 
requirements in 37 out of 43 categories throughout 2007/08. The 
remaining six categories were fully met by the end of March 2008.

This marks a substantial improvement since 2006/07, when the Trust met 
24 standards throughout the year.

The Healthcare Commission focused on seven essential areas: 

safety  

care environment and amenities  

clinical and cost effectiveness  

governance  

patient focus  

accessible and responsive care  

public health 

These are broken down into the 43 standards, which range from the 
reporting of incidents and levels of training to patient information and 
the involvement of patients and local people.

The Healthcare Commission publishes the Annual Health Check every 
year in October. The Trust’s submission to the Healthcare Commission is 
available at: http://www.northdevonhealth.nhs.uk/about/annual_health_
check.shtml

Healthcare Commission fi nds excellent 
services in North Devon
Each year the Healthcare Commission releases several reports on 
specifi c services provided by NHS Trusts. In 2007, these reports looked at 
Pathology, Maternity and in-patient services. The Trust is delighted to 
report that these services all received very favourable results.

NDHT’s pathology service is ‘excellent’ 

The Healthcare Commission’s report into pathology services awarded 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust an overall rating of ‘excellent’. 
The Trust scored the highest of all the pathology services in the South 
West Peninsula. 

The Trust scored the 
highest of all the 
pathology services 
in the South West 
Peninsula. 
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The pathology laboratory, based at North Devon District Hospital, carries 
out many different types of tests and analyses, usually involving blood, 
other body fl uids and tissue. These tests are often vital to the diagnosis 
of conditions - some of them life-threatening - and form the basis of 
doctors’ decisions on treatment in more than 70% of cases. 

The laboratory serves all the community hospitals and GP surgeries in 
the North Devon area, and Stratton, which is in Cornwall.  Each year 
the pathology laboratory carries out more than 3.75 million tests within 
a total budget of £5.25 million. This is very cost-effective in the ratio 
between staff and the number of tests carried out. 

In 2007, the laboratory moved to a computer-based system for returning 
results to clinicians and GPs. As the geographical area covered by the lab 
is so large, this signifi cantly reduced time delays. Previously, results were 
paper-based and relied on the Trust’s daily delivery-van service. 

The Commission highlighted that despite increasing demand from 
clinicians, pathology staff turned tests around faster than ever. Over the 
past six years the numbers of tests increased by: 

82% in Biochemistry (eg tests for diabetes) –

31% in Haematology (eg anaemia) –

15% in Histopathology (eg cancer) –

31% in Microbiology (eg MRSA) –

Demand from GPs has grown particularly rapidly as more services are 
provided in community settings. 

The results can be downloaded from the Healthcare Commission’s 
website on www.healthcarecommission.org.uk/acutehospitalportfolio

Each year Pathology 
carries out more than 
3.75 million tests 
within a total budget 
of £5.25 million.
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Maternity service is one of best in England

The NHS watchdog body, the Healthcare Commission, surveyed 26,000 
women who had given birth in February 2007 about the quality of care 
during and after pregnancy. 

The survey results for Northern Devon showed that maternity care in this 
Trust was among the best in the country. 

The results rated the Trust as top in the country for the confi dence that 
women felt in their midwives, obstetricians and other team members. 

It also put the Trust well ahead of the national average on nearly all 
other counts, including the proportion of women who: 

Were offered home births  

Were offered NHS ante-natal care  

Started feeding their babies exclusively on breast milk  

Were given active support with breast feeding  

Rated care after giving birth as excellent  

In a series of detailed elements within the survey, local women also put 
local care ahead of other maternity services. For example: 

94% said they were given a choice about where to have baby (81%  
national average)

91% said they were given the choice of having baby at home (57%  
national average)

96% felt involved in the decisions that were made about their care  
(67% national average)

88% said the hospital was very clean (65% national average)  

90% said they were treated with kindness and understanding during  
pregnancy (76% national average) 

The proportions rating care as excellent before, during and after birth 
were all at least 12 percentage points above the national average.

In-patient survey praises nursing, treatment & care 
in hospital

In May 2007, the Healthcare Commission released a report on the 
standards of nursing, treatment and in-patient care at North Devon 
District Hospital. The results showed that the Trust is well-regarded by 
patients on the wards. Nursing staff were given high ratings - putting 
them in the top 20% nationwide - for the way they answered questions, 
inspired confi dence and acted courteously to in-patients. 
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In the care and treatment section of the survey, Northern Devon 
Healthcare NHS Trust, which runs the hospital, was also in the top 20% 
for levels of privacy when patients discussed their condition and for help 
with eating meals. 

Other highlights from the survey include ratings in the top 20% for: 

The length of time patients had been on the waiting list before  
admission 

Choice of admission date  

Help from staff for patients who were in pain  

The way staff explained the purpose of medicines that patients were  
taking home 

The clarity of written information on patients’ medicines  

Macmillan funds new centre for cancer 
patients 
In April 2007, the national head of Macmillan Cancer Support visited 
North Devon District Hospital to see the new centre for seriously-ill 
patients that the charity has funded. Judy Beard, Acting Chief Executive 
of Macmillan, met staff and patients on the Supportive Care Suite. 

The centre was specially designed for people who need palliative care 
and assistance to ease pain, and provides support in the later stages of 
illnesses such as cancer. It enables staff, relatives and friends to be on 
hand 24 hours a day. 

The centre has a patient bedroom with en-suite bathroom, and a small 
living area with television, radio and breakfast bar for family and carers. 

The joint development enables Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust, 
to offer specialist care for patients in a peaceful environment away from 
the busy wards. It also complements the support provided for patients at 
the North Devon Hospice. 

“We are about to 
start work to create 
the 21st century 
hospitals that the 
people of North 
Devon need and 
deserve. Things are 
really looking up.”

Nursing staff were 
given high ratings 
- putting them 
in the top 20% 
nationwide - for the 
way they answered 
questions, inspired 
confi dence and acted 
courteously to in-
patients. 
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Board decides on £23.5m hospital 
refurbishment

In June 2007, the Trust produced its Estates Strategy which outlined 
how the existing buildings needed to be changed or rebuilt to allow us 
to improve services. Board members gave the go-ahead for a £23.5m 
programme for major refurbishment and rebuilding work over the next 
four to fi ve years. The aim is to modernise the estate and group services 
in the best way to improve care and effi ciency. 

An example which demonstrates this are the plans for a new Emergency 
Hub: by grouping medical and surgical assessment units with A&E, 
patients arrive at A&E and receive speedy diagnoses and/or treatment 
by a senior team of doctors and nurses. Currently these departments are 
spread out across the site and the teams of staff are separate.

Refurbishment is expected to be completed by 2012, compared to a 
timescale of 5-10 years for a new build through the Private Finance 
Initiative route. 

Chief Executive Jac Kelly said: “We won’t have a new hospital, but we’ll 
have a renewed hospital. We are about to start work to create the 21st 
century hospitals that the people of North Devon need and deserve.”

NDHT hospitals in top 14% for 
cleanliness
In December 2007, the results of the Patient Environment Action Team 
(PEAT) inspections were released. PEAT is an initiative from the National 
Patient Safety Agency which annually reviews standards within all NHS 
hospitals. 

All fi ve hospitals in North Devon that were inspected this year by PEAT 
scored ‘excellent’ or ‘good’ for cleanliness and environmental standards. 

All fi ve also scored ‘excellent’ for the quality of the food provided to 
patients - for the second year running.

“We are about to 
start work to create 
the 21st century 
hospitals that the 
people of North 
Devon need and 
deserve. Things are 
really looking up.”
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North Devon District Hospital and South Molton Community Hospital 
were judged to have excellent standards of cleanliness which put them 
in the top 14% of Trusts in the UK. 

Bideford, Holsworthy and Torrington community hospitals were marked 
to be of a ‘good’ standard of cleanliness, which ranked them in the top 
49%. These scores contributed towards the Healthcare Commission’s 
score rating of the Northern Devon Healthcare Trust.

Ilfracombe Community Hospital was not assessed, as it has fewer than 
the cut-off number of ten beds.

Jac Kelly, Chief Executive of Northern Devon Healthcare Trust said, 
“We are all so proud of achieving such outstanding results across the 
Board. Patients expect a high level of cleanliness and food service when 
they come to hospital and we are delighted that our efforts have been 
nationally recognised.”

“It is a real team effort at North Devon with all staff taking 
responsibility to provide top quality services. Our thanks go to all those 
Trust and Sodexo staff who make sure that our patients receive care in a 
safe, well maintained and clean environment and for those who ensure 
that our food service continues to be judged as excellent.“

Sodexo partnership goes from strength 
to strength
Sodexo has worked with the Trust to provide a range of food and 
facilities management services to the District and Community Hospitals 
in North Devon since 1997. These services include staff and patient 
catering, housekeeping, portering, car parking, post room and reception 
management, waste management and cleaning.

In December 2007, Sodexo staff helped the Trust achieve an ‘excellent’ 
rating for its standards of cleanliness and a ‘good’ rating for food by 
the National Patient Safety Agency initiative, known as the Patient 
Environment Action Team (PEAT).

The successful partnership also assisted in the Trust recently being 
named as one of the NHS’s most improved hospitals over the last year. A 
report from the Healthcare Commission puts the Trust in the top ten for 
progress between 2006/07 and 2007/08.

Since year end, the Trust Board has agreed to extend the Sodexo 
contract until March 2013. 
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Health Information Centre opens its 
doors at North Devon District Hospital 
An Information Centre to help people across North Devon with health 
issues and information was formally opened in November 2007. 

The centre was opened by Caroline Grafton-Grattan, the Devon County 
Chairman for Macmillan Cancer Support. The charity invested £132,000 
in the Centre. 

The Centre is stocked with a wide variety of written material, as well 
as having two computers with direct access to useful websites. It is 
designed to help patients understand more about their conditions or 
other health issues, so they can make choices about their care. Its brief is 
also to help the wider community, on a free and confi dential basis.

For example, trained staff can help with:

Up-to-date information on different conditions, healthy lifestyles,  
benefi ts and social care

Contact details for local and national support groups and services 

Who to contact if they don’t have what you want 

Information in other formats, such as large type or languages other  
than English

The centre is open: 9.30am-4.30pm, Monday to Friday

Anyone is welcome to drop in, email: informationcentre@ndevon.
swest.nhs.uk, phone: 01271 314091 or visit the website www.
northdevonhealth.nhs.uk/informationcentre/index.shtml 
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 NDDH opens new stroke unit for faster 
treatment and rehabilitation
In January 2008, the Northern Devon Healthcare Trust was delighted 
to announce the opening of the new Acute Stroke Unit (ASU) at North 
Devon District Hospital (NDDH). Forming part of the new stroke patient 
pathway, the unit at NDDH has two bays of 4 beds with intensive 
monitoring facilities for two patients and two individual side rooms.

From the 16 January, stroke patients benefi ted from being assessed 
and treated in a dedicated stroke ward by a multi-disciplinary team, 
including physiotherapists, occupational therapists, dieticians, speech 
therapists and specialist doctors. Once patients go through the acute 
phase of treatment, they are then transferred to Elizabeth ward at 
Bideford Community Hospital for further specialist and intensive 
rehabilitation by a dedicated team. 

Since the year end, the Trust has put plans in place to extend this 
rehabilitation into the community to support a much earlier discharge 
from hospital for patients.

Previously, patients would have been admitted through the Medical 
Admissions Unit, assessed and then transferred to other wards around 
the hospital. Now patients are admitted to the Emergency Department, 
assessed, if necessary receive a CT scan and thrombolysis, and then 
transferred to the ASU for the acute phase of their treatment.

Stroke is one of the most common reasons for admission to hospital 
with over 300 cases each year in North Devon. The new purpose-built 
unit means the specialist stroke teams working at NDDH and Bideford 
can concentrate on the management of stroke patients and more easily 
introduce the latest types of stroke treatment. 

Strokes are diffi cult to detect as the symptoms are sometimes subtle and 
not painful. Treatment and recovery are more successful the quicker the 
patient gets to hospital and receives specialist treatment. It is vital that 
people know the symptoms of a stroke. 

The FAST system is a simple way of confi rming that a stroke has occurred 
-

Facial weakness - can the person smile? Has their mouth or eye  
drooped?

Arm weakness - can the person raise both arms? 

Speech problems - can the person speak clearly and understand what  
you say?

Test all three symptoms 

If the person fails any of the tests and the symptoms have come on 
suddenly, they should go to hospital immediately.

Stroke is one of 
the most common 
reasons for admission 
to hospital with over 
300 cases each year 
in North Devon.
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Single Assessment Process launches in 
Northern Devon
Since the year end and following months of planning, the Northern 
Devon Healthcare Trust was the fi rst in the South West to launch its 
electronic ‘Single Assessment Process’ (eSAP) in June 2008. This launch 
co-incided with the Devon County Council’s launch of Care Direct Plus: a 
one-stop shop for referrals into complex care teams and social care.  

The single assessment process reduces duplication and saves patients 
from giving the same personal details to every agency responsible 
for their care. This was particularly an issue for those patients with 
complex needs as there were likely to be several health and social 
care professionals in contact with each individual. eSAP allows health 
professionals to electronically record notes, visits and advice onto 
patient fi les using the new tablets or slates. The patient notes are 
automatically uploaded and amended on return to the practice or offi ce 
base.  

eSAP also allows staff to build upon assessments already completed 
and build care plans around the individual wishes of that patient. The 
community staff bring the new electronic ‘tablets’ (smaller and lighter 
than a laptop) to support all home visits and patient interactions in the 
community. 

The ward staff use ‘slates’ (small laptops for use in clinical areas). In the 
space of one week following the launch, the Trust went from 100% 
paper records to complete take-up of electronic referrals.

This Trust is the fi rst in the UK to have implemented eSAP across health 
and social care, acute and community services.

The single assessment 
process reduces 
duplication and saves 
patients from giving 
the same personal 
details to every 
agency responsible 
for their care.
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Trust brings in new generation of 
electronic beds
In January 2008, the Trust took the decision to replace nearly all of its 
beds at the North Devon District Hospital and Community Hospitals 
with state-of-the-art electronic versions. All old solid-framed beds and 
mattresses were disposed of and new versions brought in under a £1m 
deal with top manufacturers Hill Rom.

Over the course of two weeks in May 2008, a total of 415 standard 
electronic beds were delivered to all the hospitals run by the Trust. A 
further 25 specialist beds and cots were also ordered, along with special 
extensions for tall people.

Each bed can easily be adjusted up or down, and angled so patients can 
raise their feet or sit up and read, for example. As well as being more 
comfortable, the beds enable patients to alter their position without 
having to call a nurse and offer improved safety, with rails to reduce the 
risk of falling out.

Our ambitions
In 2007, the Northern Devon Healthcare Trust Board launched an 
exercise to develop its Service Strategy. At the time, this was particularly 
focused on the Durrow recommendations for a robust Estates Strategy. 

From this exercise, a vision for the future was developed for the Trust 
and in May 2007 the Board approved a new mission statement and set 
of ten strategic objectives. 

A series of SWOT (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats) 
assessments were then undertaken on each clinical service in the 
Trust using the Trust’s strategic objectives as assessment criteria. The 
assessments were undertaken by a multi-stakeholder group with 
representation from commissioning, operational management, clinical 
leads, Patient and Public Involvement and other agencies where 
appropriate. In some cases, a multi-stakeholder workshop was held to 
support the development of this work. 

The SWOTs were then grouped into 6 programmes and cross referenced 
to other strategies as a number of cross cutting links emerged. The six 
programmes are: 

The Diagnostic Services Programme – including Pathology, 1. 
Radiology; 

The Elective Care Programme – including General and Vascular 2. 
Surgery, Urology, Plastic Surgery, Musculoskeletal services, 
Ophthalmology, Ear Nose and Throat, Maxillo Facial Surgery and 
Orthodontics and Dermatology; 

The Cancer Care Programme – including Haematology, Oncology, 3. 
Chemotherapy, Palliative Care; 

The Women’s and Children’s Care Programme – including Obstetrics 4. 
and maternity, Midwifery, Paediatrics, Gynaecology and Sexual 
Health; 
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The Unscheduled Care Programme – including Unscheduled Care 5. 
from the primary care interface through secondary care - acute and 
community back to the primary and social care interfaces; 

The Older People and Long Term Conditions Programme – including 6. 
older people, community services and stroke, cardiology, diabetes 
and respiratory conditions. 

The Trust’s strategic objectives sit amidst a much broader context 
i.e. within the standards and policy set by the Department of Health 
through the National Service frameworks (NSF), national cancer plans, 
National Institute of Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidance, Standards 
for Better Health; within a Strategic Health Authority context, i.e. the 
NHS South West’s Framework for Improving Health in the South West 
2008/09 – 2010/11, and; on a more local level, within the context of 
a local population with an increasingly older demographic profi le, 
with sharp differences in geo-demographic qualities and pockets of 
signifi cant deprivation and wide variations in health inequalities across 
Northern Devon. 

Each individual strategy considered national strategy, commissioner 
ambitions and targets and the changing population demographics.  
Each Service Strategy was discussed by the Trust’s Executive Team, Lead 
Clinicians, Clinical Cabinet and the Clinical Services Executive Committee. 

In January 2008 the Board approved the launch of a draft Service 
Strategy for wider engagement with stakeholders. The aim of the 
engagement was to maximise involvement and awareness of our 
strategic direction and ambitions and provide the opportunity for our 
staff and stakeholders to comment on all our plans and ideas. A series of 
workshops, road shows, briefi ngs and other events were subsequently 
held. The draft strategies have also been stored on the Trust’s 
intranet and physically disseminated to stakeholders, staff, patients, 
commissioners, joint agency groups, volunteers and other interested 
parties. 

Comments and views expressed were fed back into the development of 
the strategy and mission statement. 

Consequently, a new vision emerged which is refl ected in the service 
strategy and which can be described as follows:

Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust has a strong 
and vibrant future, working with the network of 
general practices, the acute and community hubs 
to provide the best care, to the highest standard 
and in the right place – excellence in health and 
social care provision.

Since year end, the Trust can report that the fi nal draft of the Service 
Strategy: Our Ambitions 2008 was published in June 2008. Our 
Ambitions 2008 is underpinned by a set of projects required to achieve 
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its strategic aims. The prioritisation of these projects will take place 
following engagement with our stakeholders and will  emerge from the 
Integrated Business Planning process. 

The four cornerstones to the service strategy are-

Excellent emergency and planned care:

We will provide high quality emergency and planned care.  

Our network of minor injury units in community hospitals and in the  
emergency hub at the NDDH will provide excellent assessment and 
treatment for all patients who require emergency or urgent care. 

Our new Day Surgery Centre will deliver over 85% of all operations  
as a day case.

Services reaching out into the community:

We will provide services mainly in community settings, to overcome  
the rural barriers in Northern Devon. 

The Trust will offer fl exible, accessible, patient focused care closer to  
where people live and work. 

Having a network of community hospital hubs, resource centres  
and acute services under one management team make true rural 
healthcare achievable.

Clinical partnerships and networking:

Many services will be provided through clinical partnerships and  
networks with other organisations, to ensure that care is safe and of 
high quality and uses best clinical practice.

Embedding public health and education in services:

The Trust will play a key role in helping people live healthy lives and  
promoting independent living. Services will have a strong focus on 
public health and reducing inequalities.

The four 
cornerstones to the 
service strategy are-

Excellent emergency 
and planned care:

Services reaching out 
into the community:

Clinical partnerships 
and networking:

Embedding public 
health and education 
in services:
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Objective of the OFR
The objective of this OFR is to prepare a balanced and comprehensive analysis to inform the reader of events 
that impacted on the Trust during the 2007/08 fi nancial year and is presented through the eyes of the Trust 
Board.

Trust overview
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust serves a population of approximately 165,000 people within North 
Devon and neighbouring towns and villages in North East Cornwall and Mid Devon. North Devon is a 
popular retirement area and more than 20% of the population are over 65 years old and nearly 10% are 
over 75 years old (UK averages are 16% and 7.5% respectively). The total local population has increased by 
about 1% per year in the last decade.

Since 1991, the Trust has managed the North Devon District Hospital in Barnstaple and provides a full 
complement of adult and child secondary care services including outpatient care, inpatient, day case, 
emergency treatment and follow-up care, diagnostics, maternity services (including the Special Care Baby 
Unit), intensive care and a busy Accident & Emergency department. 

From 1 October 2006 the Trust took on the ownership and management responsibility from North Devon 
Primary Care Trust for the provision of community hospitals together with community services including 
Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy, Speech and Language Therapy, Podiatry and District Nursing.

The fi ve community hospitals, based at Bideford, Ilfracombe, Holsworthy, South Molton and Torrington offer 
a range of minor injury, rehabilitation and inpatient bed facilities. The Barnstaple Health Centre offers a mix 
of primary and secondary care services such as podiatry, PALS, sexual health and children’s services whilst 
Lynton has a Resource Centre with a minor injury unit.

Across these sites we have more than 20 wards, 7 operating theatres, around 400 inpatient beds and more 
than 20 day case beds. We spent around £108.5m to provide healthcare services in 2007/08 (£94.5m in 
2006/07) and at the end of the fi nancial year we employed on average 2028 whole time equivalent staff 
(1,999 in 2006/07).

The Trust also accommodates the Devon Partnership Mental Health Trust’s inpatient facilities at Barnstaple 
and Bideford which includes a learning disabilities unit. 

To meet local healthcare needs we work closely with the following organisations:

NHS South West Strategic Health Authority; 

Devon Primary Care Trust; 

Cornwall & Isles of Scilly Primary Care Trust; 

Somerset Primary Care Trust; 

Devon Partnership Mental Health NHS Trust; 

South Western Ambulance Service NHS Trust; 

The Trust continually reviews services to ensure that they follow the latest guidelines in clinical best 
practice and policy and is committed to involving service users, patients, carers and the public in planning, 
developing, delivering and improving healthcare services.

In May 2007, the Board approved an Estate Strategy that committed the Trust to undertake a comprehensive 
review of the services the Trust provided, the way those services were confi gured and the requirements of 
the estate to maximise the effi ciency of those services.  Refurbishment is expected to cost around £23.5m, 
with completion by 2012, compared to a timescale of 5-10 years for a new build through the Private Finance 

Operating and Financial Review (OFR)Operating and Financial Review (OFR)

Royal Devon and Exeter Foundation Trust 

Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Devon County Council Adult and Community  
(Social) Services;

North Devon District Council; 

Torridge District Council. 
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Initiative route. Capital limits and the sale of part of the site should mean there is no need to borrow money 
for the work.

The Trust has actively included service users and other stakeholder groups in the service reviews.

During the year, the Trust can demonstrate the following examples of system change that has been 
implemented during the current year:

Introduction of a Case Note Tracking system; 

Outsourcing of the temporary workforce to NHS Professionals; 

Building a new Acute Stroke Unit at NDDH; 

Developing the Medical Assessment Unit and reducing inappropriate admissions to a hospital bed; 

Working to improve patient fl ows – IMPACT project; 

Achieving the maximum 18 week Referral to Treatment Targets ahead of the December 2008 target; 

New Health Information Centre opened; 

Other Highlights included:

Pathology service rated “Excellent” by the Healthcare Commission – the highest in the South West  
Peninsula;

Payroll services brought back within the Trust; 

Delayed implementation of the National Programme for IT Release 0 (R0) due to changes and system  
development;

North Devon Maternity Services were rated amongst the best in England; 

The Trust was in the top 14% of cleanest hospitals in England; 

Trust governance and Board level changes
The Trust is directed by the Trust Board, which meets regularly to determine strategy and receive information 
from those managing day-to-day operations. 

The Trust Board is led by a Chairman together with a team of fi ve Non-Executive Directors and fi ve Executive 
Directors. The Non-Executive Directors have a part-time role, providing experience and expertise, usually 
gained from working in organisations outside the NHS.

The Executive and Associate Directors are led by the Chief Executive and combine their role as Board 
members with regular management responsibility. Jac Kelly was appointed as Chief Executive in October 
2006 on an interim basis for 18 months. This has now been extended to April 2010.

The Trust also experienced the following Executive and Non-Executive Director movements during the 
fi nancial year:

June Lake was re-appointed as a Non-Executive Director from 1 July 2007 for a further 4 years.

Jane Reynolds was appointed as Non-Executive Director from 1 June 2007 for a period of 4 years.

Dr. Sean O’Kelly’s secondment to the Trust as Interim Medical Director ceased on 30 September 2007.

Dr. Mike Roberts was appointed as Medical Director from 1 October 2007.
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Full details of these and any other Executive and Non-Executive directors are contained within the 
remuneration report.

The treatment of pension liabilities can be found on pages 10 and 11 of the accounts.

The Board has adopted Codes of Conduct and Accountability recommended by the NHS Executive. Audit and 
Assurance, Risk Management, Clinical Governance and Remuneration and Terms of Service Committees are 
well established. 

Details of company directorships or other signifi cant interests held by directors where those companies are 
likely to do business, or are possibly seeking to do business with the NHS where this may confl ict with their 
managerial responsibilities are required to be disclosed in the Declaration of Members Interests. This is 
presented at each Board meeting and is updated as required.

The Declaration of Members Interests is available for inspection from Margaret Gill, Munro House, North 
Devon District Hospital, Raleigh Park, Barnstaple, North Devon, EX31 4JB

The Board receives assurance from many sources and these are detailed in the Statement of Internal Control.

Mission statement and strategic objectives
The Trust reviewed it’s strategic objectives and those agreed for 2007/08 are shown below:

Mission statement: 

Best Care, Highest Standards, Right Place

The Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust aims to provide high quality integrated health care services locally 
by promoting and investing in best clinical and employment practice. 

Our ten strategic objectives: 

1. Patient safety:

To maintain high standards of governance and continually improve patients’ outcomes and provide the best 
possible quality of services, ensuring the care and safety of patients, carers and relatives. Especially, 

To reduce hospital acquired infections and improve control of infection practices;  

To reduce slips trips and falls.  

For example, we will 

Implement best clinical practices in control of infection and falls-prevention;  

Provide appropriate decontamination facilities and medical equipment;  

Focus on health and safety training and risk reduction.  

2. Effi cient and effective:

To deliver clinically effective, cost effi cient services that are based on research and evidenced-based good 
practice. Especially, 

To achieve and sustain the 18 week referral to treatment target;  

To deliver day case surgery as the norm;  
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To match productivity and effi ciency of top quartile performance of other healthcare providers;  

To achieve excellent rating for healthcare commission core and development ratings;  

To achieve the standards required for services described in Healthcare Commission Improvement Reviews  
eg Paediatrics. 

For example, we will 

Create a dedicated and larger Day Surgery Unit;  

Develop a child centred facility;  

Develop modern out-patient facilities;  

Develop corporate strategies that support clinical service needs eg service and estate strategies;  

Use effective purchasing that enables the Trust to demonstrate value for money.  

3. Listening and responding to the needs of patients:

To respect the privacy and dignity of patients and improve all aspects of the patient’s experience. Especially, 

To become the Provider of Choice through the delivery of patient-centred care;  

To promote equality and diversity in the development and delivery of our services and to value the  
benefi ts this brings; 

To act with integrity and provide an open, honest and informed approach to everyone who uses our  
services; 

To create a patient environment that is both pleasant and conducive to meeting patient needs  

4. Delivering care in the most appropriate setting:

To deliver services closer to home in the community where it becomes practicable and safe to do so, 
concentrating the resources of our acute hospital on providing excellent secondary care that cannot be 
delivered elsewhere. Especially, 

To redesign services that encourage a community or self care focus;  

To provide excellent 24 hour emergency services.  

For example, we will

Further develop the community based services eg Community Care of the Elderly, Paediatrics, Diagnostic  
services, Day treatments; 

Develop care pathways for patients with long term conditions eg stroke;  

Provide an integrated Emergency Centre on the acute site.  

5. Integrated health and social care:

To deliver integrated models of care embracing primary secondary and social care through a whole systems 
approach. Especially, 

To integrate the management of health and social care with Devon County Council Social Care Services;  
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To support the integration and communication of patient’s needs between health and social care  
organisations; 

To support the implementation of integrated community based multidisciplinary health and social care  
teams for adult services. 

For example, we will

Implement the Peninsula wide electronic Single Assessment Process (SAP) solution;  

Develop the Partnerships of Older People’s Projects (POPPs) initiative in partnership with Devon County  
Council. 

6. High quality services:

To develop care pathways that link into energetic and purposeful clinical networks with other providers 
in order to maintain local access to high quality services and retain a highly skilled and motivated local 
workforce. Especially, 

To further develop our clinical networks in Clinical Haematology, Maxillo-Facial Surgery and  
Orthodontics, ENT, Paediatrics and Bowel Screening; 

To ensure we recruit highly skilled staff through the development of our Workforce Planning and  
Development Strategy; 

To provide excellent undergraduate and multi-professional training and education;  

To ensure we recognise and value our staff for their positive contribution and become an employer of  
choice. 

For example, we will 

Develop our Workforce Planning and Development Strategy;  

Provide modern facilities for Education and Training;  

Develop and implement model employer policies and practices.  

7. Strategic partnerships:

To develop effective strategic partnerships with all our stakeholders. Especially, 

To ensure stakeholder views are integral to our strategic planning of services;  

To work and collaborate with key partners in healthcare provision to deliver integrated models of care;  

To work with stakeholders and ensure the Trust makes a positive civic contribution.  

8. Modern and effective infrastructure:

To ensure that clinical care is supported and delivered through modern facilities and new technologies and 
digital opportunities. Especially, 

To provide modern and pleasant facilities fi t for purpose for Paediatrics, Surgery, Chemotherapy,  
Pathology, Education, Out-patients, Intensive Care, Community services through the development of our 
Estate Strategy; 
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To maximise our environmental friendly policies and practice;  

To support good quality care with up to date diagnostic and medical equipment, where clinically  
appropriate; 

To implement the electronic care record - Cerner Millenium;  

To maximise the use of the Connecting for Health IT Programme.  

For example, we will 

Develop our Estate Strategy;  

Develop our Information Management and Technology Strategy;  

Develop a robust and forward looking fi nancial plan to support a medical equipment programme.  

9. Public health:

To promote the public health agenda and ensure that services have a focus on public health and education 
where appropriate. 

In collaboration with the Devon Primary Care Trust and General Practitioners, to embed health  
promotion and education in the development and delivery of all our services; 

To focus on the key priority areas of smoking cessation, obesity and exercise;  

To promote and support the health of our workforce.  

10. Robust and sustainable:

To maintain a service portfolio and business model based on a clear understanding of our strategic vision and 
direction for service development to ensure a sustainable future for services in North Devon. Especially, 

To deliver fi nancial balance each year;  

To clear the accumulated debt by 2008/2009;  

To exploit our opportunities to develop “centres of excellence”;  

To develop corporate strategies that supports the Strategic Planning Framework eg Resource  
Management Strategy, Estate Strategy, Information Management and Technology Strategy; 

To become a Foundation Trust within the next two years.  

These strategic objectives refl ect the progress the Trust has made on the road to recovery and is a signifi cant 
move from the 2006/07 objectives that were consistent with the Healthcare Commission Core Standards with 
the exception of fi nancial balance which was a separate objective that was consistent with the recovery plans 
the Trust had in place and the necessity for fi nancial health to drive the future vision of the Trust.

All service developments and activities provided by the Trust are linked directly to one or more of these 
strategic objectives. Achievement of the Trust’s strategic objectives is monitored by the Chief Executive and 
Chairman.

The Trust develops strategies that are agreed with its commissioning Primary Care Trusts that are designed 
to meet the stated strategic objectives and direction of the NHS nationally whilst providing local solutions 
for the benefi t of the residents of North Devon. Examples are included in section 5 of the operating and 
Financial Review.
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To achieve this, the Trust has produced a Business Plan for 2007-08 that is available for inspection at the 
Trust’s headquarters in Barnstaple. In conjunction with Devon PCT, the Trust will continue to develop services 
that take a multi-agency approach to providing the best healthcare, in the right place at the right time for 
the benefi t of the patient.

Trust performance
The main performance factors affecting the Trust in 2007-2008 have included:

Key Performance Indicators

Target Actual Variance
% 
Variance

Traffi c 
Light

Direction 
of Travel

MRSA Cases (Cum.) 12 15 3 - ↑
Clostridium diffi cile Cases  
(Cum.)

174 99 -75 - ↑
18wk Admitted 90% 91.0% - 1.0% ↑
18wk Non-Admitted 95% 96.6% - 1.6% ↑
Outpatient wait >11wks 0 0 0 - →
Outpatient waiting list 1,528 2,558 +976 +63.9% ↓
Inpatient wait >20 wks 0 0 0 - →
Inpatient waiting list 930 1,479 +549 +59.0% ↓
Diagnostic wait >6 wks 0 0 0 - →
A&E max. 4 Hr waits (Incl. 
MIU) 

98% 98.88% - +0.88% ↑
Cancer 2 week 100% 100% 248/248 - →
Cancer 31 days 98% 100% 39/39 - →
Cancer 62 days 95% 95.5% 21/22 - →
Cancelled Ops rebook <28day 100% 100% 0 - →

Cumulative Activity – March 2008 Data

Target Actual Variance
% 
Variance

Traffi c 
Light

Direction 
of Travel

GP Referrals 26,075 27,550 +1,475 +5.7% →
Other Referrals 14,025 13,217 -808 -5.8% →
Day Case Activity 15,227 15,653 +426 +2.8% ↑
Day Case Rate (all specialties) 75.0% 75.2% - 0.2% →
Ordinary Inpatient Activity 5,213 5,150 -63 -1.2% ↑
Total Elective Activity 20,440 20,803 +363 +1.8% ↑
Non-elective Activity  (All) 18,534 16,672 -1,862 -10.1% →
Non-elective Activity (G&A) 13,958 12,989 -969 -6.9% →
Non-elective Activity (G&A) 
(inc Emergency Clinic)

13,958 13,236 -722 -5.2% →
Delayed Transfers of Care as a 
% of occupied beds

2.0% 3.6% - +1.6% →

As a result of the time-lag that naturally exists in reporting performance data, indicators for March 2008 are 
taken from the April 2008 Performance report that details the reporting the Trust makes on a monthly basis 
to the Board and Strategic Health Authority.

Against these challenging demands, the Trust continues to progress its recovery plans and move towards the 
achievement of its Statutory 5 year breakeven duty. Details of fi nancial performance and future outlook are 
contained later in the OFR.
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Standards for Better Health
Northern Devon Healthcare Trust is required to produce an annual declaration regarding compliance with 
the Healthcare Commission’s Standards for Better Health. The latest declaration covers the period 1st April 
2007 to 31st March 2008.

The Standards for Better Health are an indicator of the quality of services and governance arrangements 
the Trust has in place for those services. The Standards are grouped between ‘core’ and ‘developmental’ 
standards against which the Trust is required to perform a self assessment of compliance.  For the period 
stated only the ‘core’ standards contribute to the Healthcare Commission’s annual health check.

The fi nal declaration of compliance was as follows:

Status 2007/08 2006/07
Met 37 24
Insuffi cient Assurance 0 0
Not Met 6 20

To achieve ‘met’ status the Trust must be able to evidence a full year of compliance. To evidence turnaround 
during the year, a status of ‘met by year end’ has been used for the narrative within the fi nal declaration; 
however these are still considered ‘not met’ under the Healthcare Commission scoring arrangements.

Status 2007/08 2006/07
Met full year 37 24
Met by year end 6 14
Insuffi cient Assurance 0 0
Not Met by year end 0 6

Of the 6 ‘not met’ standards all 6 are considered to be met by year end.  This positions the Trust for a full 
year of compliance with those standards for period 2008/09. 

Comments have been received from the Patient and Public Involvement Forum and the Devon Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and these statements support the Trust Board’s assurance and declaration.

The 2006/07 declaration resulted in Northern Devon Healthcare Trust being assessed as ‘weak’ for the ‘quality 
of services’.

The results of the declaration made will not be announced by the Healthcare Commission until October 2008. 
Based on the submission made, the Trust would expect to receive a ‘good’ rating for the Quality of Services 
in 2007/08.

Changes to the North Devon health economy as a result of 
commissioning a Patient-Led NHS and Vertical Integration
It was reported in last year’s OFR that during 2006/07, the North Devon health economy underwent a 
signifi cant change as a result of the outcome of the consultation into the future confi guration of Primary 
Care Trusts (PCT) in Devon. The Trust’s main commissioner, North Devon PCT was dissolved on 30 September 
2006 and from 1 October 2006 was merged to form a new Devon PCT. After the initial set up of Devon PCT, 
the Trust is now in a strong position to develop exciting opportunities for the patients of North Devon’s new 
commissioner and in March 2008 successfully agreed the contract for 2008/09.

The Trust has integrated the Community Services within the whole organisation during 2007/08 and has 
achieved the critical mass to the Trust that contributes to the sustainability of acute and community services 
in North Devon. 
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To summarise, the services transferred to Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust included the fi ve community 
hospitals mentioned above together with associated nursing services, Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy, 
Speech and Language Therapy, Podiatry and District Nursing. It was decided that some services, including 
Health Visitors and other children’s services should transfer to Devon PCT because of their wider strategic 
importance.

The Trust is currently consulting on and reviewing where and how services are provided as part of the service 
strategies that support the redevelopment of the North Devon District Hospital.

Patient pathways have been developed in Stroke, Outpatient services and Medical In-reach and the Trust 
will be in a position to strategically position other services that maximises access for patients in a community 
setting. Examples include DEXA scanning, Fractured Neck of Femur and Outpatient clinics.

Picture Archiving and Communication System (PACS) x-ray links have been established between NDDH and 
Bideford Community Hospital to improve local access for patients.

Minor Injuries Units (MIU) have established operational links with the Emergency Department at NDDH and 
this has extended the use of these local units.

The Trust has reduced the delays in patients being discharged from NDDH to a community hospital and is 
working with stakeholders to make even greater reductions. The integration of some health and social care 
services will allow further improvement in this area.

From 1 April 2008, some health and social care services have merged to provide complex care teams across 
North Devon. There are three clusters covering the geographic areas of Barnstaple, Torridge and Ilfracombe, 
South Molton and Chulmleigh. The objective is to provide a range of integrated care packages supporting 
patients in the most convenient place and increasing access to a broad range of services with minimal 
bureaucracy and supported by the implementation of the Single Assessment Process in June 2008.

The complex care teams will be supported by services from health service bodies, social services and the 
voluntary sector.

Services currently provided by the Trust that will be involved in providing these services include District 
Nurses, Community Matrons, Occupational Therapists, and Physiotherapists.

How our fi nancial performance is assessed
There are a number of targets set by the Department of Health that must be achieved by this Trust. Our 
2007/08 performance against these targets is shown below:

Target Actual Performance
To break even on income and expenditure 
taking one year with another

In year surplus of £7.602 million against a initial 
control total surplus of £7.600m

To achieve a capital cost absorption rate of 
between 3% and 4%

Rate of 3.6%

To operate within an External Financing Limit 
set by the Department of Health

Requirement of -£7,439k. Undershoot of £177k.

To pay 95% of non-NHS  invoices within 30 
days

67% of bills paid within target.

In addition to the above, a more rigorous assessment of the fi nancial management of the Trust is made 
through the Auditors Local Evaluation (ALE) process and is a consistent approach developed by the Audit 
Commission in agreement with the Department of Health to objectively measure the performance of 
NHS organisations in their Use of Resources. The Trust’s performance informs part of the overall annual 
Healthcare Commission rating the Trust receives.

Trust performance against the Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOEs) and the overall Trust ALE rating are shown below 
together with the expected future rating the Trust is planning to achieve:
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2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009
MODULE Actual Actual Projected Projected
Financial Reporting 2 2 3 3
Financial Management 1 1 3 3
Financial Standing 1 1 2 3
Internal Control 1 2 2 3
Value for Money 1 2 3 3
Overall score 1 1 2 3

Improvement in these ratings indicates the Trust is strengthening fi nancial governance within and beyond 
the Finance department.

The ALE scores are translated as follows:

1 – below minimum requirements – inadequate performance;

2 – only at minimum requirements – adequate performance;

3 – consistently above minimum requirements – performing well;

4 – well above minimum requirements – performing strongly.

The fi nancial management processes in place across the Trust have improved demonstrably and the 
requirements of the Foundation Trust framework will continue to drive improvements in this area.

Where our money came from
Total income received by the Trust in 2007/08 was £118.4 million, a 32.3% increase on the previous year, 
predominantly as a result of the full year income received from the integration of Community Hospitals and 
services from North Devon PCT from 1 October 2006 and additional investment from Devon PCT.

The source of each pound the Trust receives, together with the monetary equivalent of total income is 
summarised below:

Source:
Monetary 
Equivalent  

£m

Monetary 
Equivalent  

£m
2007/08 2007/08 2006/07 2006/07

Primary Care Trusts £0.91 £107.2 £0.86 £77.4
Other Income £0.05 £5.5 £0.07 £6.4
Education, Training & Research £0.02 £2.8 £0.03 £2.5
Other Patient Income £0.02 £2.9 £0.04 £3.3
Total £1.00 £118.4 £1.00 £89.6

The majority of the Trust’s funding comes from contracts with Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), which purchase 
healthcare on behalf of their residents. £102.5 million was received from Devon PCT (£74.8m 2006/07).

There was a 12% decrease in income from education, training and research as a result of central reductions 
in training levies and Workforce Development Confederation contributions that had to be absorbed by the 
Trust.

The Trust also provides non-patient care services to other NHS bodies which showed a reduction of £1.1m on 
2006/07 levels as a result of the loss of income from services that were vertically integrated.
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What we spent money on
The consumption of each pound the Trust spends, together with the monetary equivalent of total 
expenditure is summarised below:

The largest component of our expenditure is on salaries and wages. The Trust employed an average of 2,028 
whole time equivalent staff, including the full year impact of vertically integrated staff, at an overall cost of 
£76.0 million (70.1%) (2006/07 £66.2 million (70.1%) .

Average staff numbers included 217 (194 in 2006/07) doctors, 634 (625 in 2006/07) nursing staff, 415 (430 in 
2006/07) Healthcare Assistants and support staff, 514 (501 in 2006/07) administration and estates staff and 
248 (249 2006/07) scientifi c and technical and other staff. Overall pay increased by £9.8m (14.8)% (2006/07 
£9.7m (17.5%) mainly as a result of the full year staff costs of vertical integration.

A further £13.6 million (2006/07 £11.6 million) was spent on clinical supplies such as drugs and consumables 
used in providing healthcare to patients.

The cost of running the premises and equipment amounts to £6.1 million (2006/07 £5.1 million) and general 
supplies and services which support the Trust’s infrastructure cost £4.8 million (2006/07 £4.4 million).

Other expenses include:

Applications:
Monetary

Equivalent (£m)
Monetary

Equivalent (£m)
2007/08 2007/08 2006/07 2006/07

Staff Pay (inc. Management) £0.70 £76.0 £0.70 £66.2
Drugs & Clinical Supplies £0.13 £13.6 £0.12 £11.6
Premises & Equipment £0.06 £6.1 £0.05 £5.1
General Supplies & Services £0.04 £4.8 £0.05 £4.4
Depreciation £0.04 £4.8 £0.04 £3.6
Services from Other NHS Bodies £0.01 £0.8 £0.02 £1.5
Other Expenses £0.02 £2.4 £0.02 £2.1
Total £1.00 £104.5 £1.00 £94.5

2007/08 fi nancial position and recovery actions
At the start of 2007/08, the Trust had a cumulative defi cit of £15.5m.

The Trust has reported break-even at an operational level and has stemmed the recurrent defi cit of previous 
years.

Devon PCT has agreed to a two year investment to eliminate the Trust’s historic debt. In 2007/08, this 
investment amounted to £7.6 million and is refl ected in the total surplus reported for the year.

The Devon PCT will invest a further £7.9 million in the Trust during 2008/09 and the Trust is planning a total 
surplus for that year of £7.9million.

The savings plans achieved during the year continued to be monitored through the Continuous Improvement 
Programme Offi ce. Savings were achieved through a structured and vigorous adherence to project 
management methodology and progress was reported regularly to the Operational Management Group, 
Trust Board, Finance & Performance Committee, Strategic Health Authority and the Department of Health.
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Highlights included:

£730k effi ciency from elective care redesign of patient pathways supporting 18 week Referral To  
Treatment (RTT) and increasing the amount of day case activity performed

£2,484k from productivity improvements and increased operating theatre utilisation 

£212k from the redesign of the way patients were treated in the Medical Assessment Unit 

£98k from Medicines Management reviews 

£204k from estate related cost reductions 

£272k from the redesign of the way patients were treated in the paediatric service 

£145k from service redesign and standardisation of products 

£117k from the review of the Healthcare Records service provision 

£96k from the review of pathology services. 

The Trust’s accounts are audited annually by the Audit Commission, Unit 5-6 Blenheim Court, Matford 
Business Park, Lustleigh Close, Exeter, Devon, EX2 8PW. The fee for this work is detailed on page 15 of the 
accounts. A  copy of the accounts are available from Kate Winter, PA to the Director of Finance, Suite 2, 
Munro House, North Devon District Hospital, Raleigh Park, Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 4JB. Alternatively they 
are available for download from our website at www.northdevonhealth.nhs.uk

Better Payment Practice Code
Section 8 identifi es a statutory requirement to pay 95% of non-NHS invoices within 30 days and details the 
Trust’s performance against this.

The Confederation of British Industry (CBI) “Better Payments Practice Code” is a four point code that 
organisations should adopt to ensure prompt payment to suppliers. The points are:

1. Agree payment terms at the outset;

2. Explain payment procedures to suppliers;

3. Pay bills in accordance with the contract or legislation;

4. Prompt communication of disputed invoices.

Under the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act, all businesses are entitled to claim statutory 
interest and debt recovery compensation for the late payment of commercial debts.

Further details as provided on page 19 of the accounts are detailed below:

Note 7.1    Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
2007/08

Number £000

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 37,963 32,295
Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target 25,543 20,939
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 67% 65%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices 
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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Note 7.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000

Amounts included within Interest Payable (Note 9) arising from 
claims made under this legislation

0 0

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this 
legislation

0
0

There were no payments in respect of late payments on commercial debts.

Capital investment
In 2007/08 capital expenditure totalled £7.437 million. This included:

£2,195k on IT infrastructure and equipment including Picture Archiving Communications Systems (PACS),  
National Programme for IT

£1,820k on replacement medical and surgical equipment 

£1,293k on service development including Theatres upgrades, and new Stroke unit 

£1,213k on new beds 

£348k on general maintenance 

£177k on Estate Strategy projects. 

The Trust received £32k in donations towards capital spend and is grateful to those organisations and 
individuals for their support.

Breakeven duty and 2008/09 fi nancial outlook
NHS Trust’s are required to break-even taking one year with another.  In practice this must be delivered over 
a three year period and can be extended to fi ve years with the permission of the Department of Health and 
starts with fi rst year the defi cit arises.  The Trust’s accumulated defi cit can be stated as follows:

Year
Position

£m
Break-even

Year
Previous available surplus00 0.4
2004/05 (Actual) (1.0) 1
2005/06 (Actual) (8.0) 2
2006/07 (Actual) (6.9) 3

(15.5)

From the above it is clear that the Trust must make surpluses of £15.5m by the end of 2008/09 in order to 
achieve its break-even duty over the extended fi ve year period as approved by the Department of Health 
in 2006. It has been recognised by Devon Primary Care Trust (PCT) and NHS South West Strategic Health 
Authority (SHA) that the Trust will be unable to achieve this from its own internally generated resources.  
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From 2007/08, the PCT has therefore agreed to pay the Trust additional resources to allow it to achieve the 
following surpluses:

Year
Position

£m
Break-even

Year
2007/08 (Actual) 7.6 4
2008/09 (Plan) 7.9 5

The table below shows the Trust’s fi nancial plan of break-even at the end of the 2007/08 fi nancial year. 
As reported last year, it is important to emphasise that in 2008/09, the planned surplus is from additional 
income that the Trust has not earned for work done or patients treated. It must also be emphasised that the 
planned surplus in 2008/09 does not provide the basis for signifi cant investment but merely a step towards 
eliminating the historic fi nancial defi cit of the organisation to put it on a fi rm footing from 2009/10.

The enormity of the task ahead should not be underestimated as the Trust strives for continuous 
improvement in the effi cient way services need to be delivered.

The following table illustrates the impact on the Trust’s cumulative defi cit. 

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09
Actual Actual Actual Actual Plan
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Post 1997 Cumulative Surplus/(Defi cit) b/fwd 372 (619) (8,580) (15,504) (7,901)

Internally Generated Surplus/(Defi cit) after 
savings achieved

(991) (7,961) (6,924) 0 0

Revised Cumulative Surplus/(Defi cit) (619) (8,580) (15,504) (15,504) 0

Internally Generated Surplus/(Defi cit) after 
savings achieved

0 0 0 2 0

Break Even Duty Funding 0 0 0 7,600 7,902
Cumulative Surplus/(Defi cit) c/fwd (619) (8,580) (15,504) (7,902) 0

Break Even Duty Year 1 2 3 4 5
Breakeven Duty Achieved? No No No No Yes

The Trust has agreed the 2008/09 Service Level Agreement with Devon PCT.

Savings identifi ed and incorporated in fi nancial plans for 2008/09 total £4.5 million and are being managed, 
reviewed and validated using the same methodology that successfully secured the required savings and 
effi ciencies in 2007/08. 

Foundation Trust status
It is expected that as early as quarter 4 of the 2008/09 fi nancial year, NHS South West  Strategic Health 
Authority will assess the Trust’s position to undertake the application process for authorisation as a NHS 
Foundation Trust during 2009/10.

NHS Foundation Trusts remain part of the NHS but are free from central government control. Within clearly 
defi ned guidelines, a NHS Foundation Trust can raise capital funding and external borrowing and determine 
the services they wish to provide.
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Economic, effi cient and effective use of resources
As a result of weaknesses highlighted in the 2005/06 Operating and Financial Review, the Trust has continued 
to systematically embed the governance arrangements that were implemented during 2006/07 as follows:

Reviewed, set and implemented new strategic and operational objectives 

All Board papers had to demonstrate the relevant strategic objectives and Standard for Better Health  
that were met

All investment decisions had to demonstrate the relevant strategic objectives and Standard for Better  
Health that were met

Monitor and scrutinise performance against strategic objectives, standards and targets 

Monitors the quality of its published performance information 

Continuous development of a sound system of internal control 

Embed the systematic approach to the management of signifi cant business risks that was implemented in  
2006/07

Embed a medium term fi nancial strategy, budgets and a capital programme that are soundly based and  
designed to deliver its strategic priorities

Embed arrangements to ensure that spending is within agreed control totals that was implemented in  
2006/07

Embed a system to manage fi nancial performance against budgets that was implemented in 2006/07. 

Full details are contained in the Statement on Internal Control and can be found within the Annual Report.

Reference has been made to the Use of Resources determined by the ALE (Auditors Local Evaluation) 
assessment in section 8 and shows continued actual and planned improvement.

Energy effi ciency performance against the Department of 
Health energy target and the consequential environmental 
impact of the Trust’s carbon footprint

New build and development

In all developments resources follow the Trust’s environmental strategy. Where possible, this requires any 
projects to use raw materials from sustainable sources only. Other products including paints, adhesives and 
so on, must be environmentally friendly and have no environmental impact.  All such developments have the 
government’s environmental assessment package NEAT applied thereby giving the project and environment 
score.

Any development within the Trust’s buildings or estate are subject to rigorous building control links with the 
local authority thereby ensuring the biodiversity of the local area is unaffected by any such development.  

Procurement

The Trust through its purchasing links with the NHS Purchasing and Supply Agency and other organisations 
aims to purchase as much as possible with sustainability as a key driver.  Sustainability in purchasing not only 
relates to the source of the product and its ability to be self sustained but also in the production, or creation 
of the product. 
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The Procurement Department are crucial in negotiating with suppliers about the removal of redundant 
equipment from site and also to ensure all cardboard, plastic and other packaging is also removed with 
major deliveries. This enables the Trust to meet its waste reduction targets. In addition,  the procurement 
team work with other South West colleagues in order to increase purchasing power and to infl uence 
suppliers to consider environmental impact, especially in how they deliver goods to site. Examples for 
frequent deliveries include the use of tote boxes and sealed cages to reduce the Trust’s cardboard mountain.

In addition to this, delivery mileage and the impact on the Trusts carbon footprint with product miles are 
all taken into consideration when choosing products.  Subject to availability, the Trust looks to the local 
community for the provision of certain goods to reduce such transport miles and carbon impact e.g  food 
supplies. 

Energy and water

The Trust is continually looking at ways to reduce energy and water consumption with an annual target 
to improve on the previous year’s performance.  Within the government’s guidance document “The 
Environmental Strategy for the National Health Service”, Trusts are tasked to meet reductions in energy and 
water by the year 2010.

The Trust has continually improved its reduction in energy consumption and has thereby met the 
government’s target of 35 to 55 GJ per metre square. The Trust is currently at 42 GJ per metre squared 
compared with 52 GJ per metre squared in 2002. This is a 19% reduction in energy consumption and has 
contributed in reducing the carbon footprint for the Trust.

In 1988 the Trust consumption of water was 80,000 cubic metres per annum. In the 2007 - 2008 year through 
water-saving schemes the Trust has reduced its water consumption to 56,000 cubic metres per annum – a 
reduction of 30%.

Waste

The Environmental Strategy for the National Health Service tasked NHS Trusts to recover waste by 45% with 
30% through recycling.

Year-on-year, the Trust has been gradually increasing the amount of waste it recycles. We have reviewed our 
recycling waste contracts, have purchased an industrial shredder for our offi ce paper much of which goes to 
riding stables as bedding.

Additionally the Trust has purchased a baling machine and now bales cardboard (approx 2,920 cages per 
annum), crushes aluminium cans and plastic milk cartons. Each central area now has the segregation facilities 
for cardboard, magazines/newspapers, paper, mixed plastics, tins/cans, glass and general waste. 

An educational package is being developed for all staff to give clear guidance about waste segregation and 
legal requirements.   The Trust aims to improve year-on-year its waste management to ensure that where 
possible recycling takes place and where waste is produced it follows the correct stream for disposal.

The Trust introduced composting from 2008.

Emergency planning
The Trust has reviewed and published its Major Incident Plan on its Intranet to comply with national 
guidance for emergency preparedness. This ensured that should a major incident occur that required a 
response from healthcare organisations in North Devon, the Trust had the necessary systems and processes in 
place for staff to take appropriate action.

The Civil Contingencies Act 1995 ensures that the United Kingdom is prepared to deal with major disruptive 
challenges however they might occur. Under the Act, the Trust was classed as a Category One responder with 
responsibilities including:
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Assessment of the risks of an emergency occurring and using this to inform contingency planning 

Puts emergency plans in place 

Has business continuity arrangements in place 

Puts in place arrangements to make information available to the public and maintain arrangements to  
warn, inform and advise the public in the event of an emergency

Shares information with other local responders to enhance co-ordination 

Co-operates with other local responders to enhance co-ordination and effi ciency. 

Working closely with our partners is fundamental to the achievement of our role and responsibilities. The 
Trust is an active member of the Devon Health Emergency Planning Group which is a forum that enables 
multi-agency working with all partners including Local Authorities, Emergency Services and voluntary 
agencies. This ensures a robust and joined up approach to planning across Devon.

As in the previous year, the Trust undertook its own test of internal systems by running an emergency 
situation and response during the year and has incorporated the lessons learned.
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 Scope of responsibility1. 
The Board is accountable for internal control. As Accountable Offi cer, and Interim Chief Executive of this 
Board, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement 
of the organisation’s policies, aims and objectives. I also have responsibility for safeguarding the public funds 
and the organisation’s assets for which I am personally responsible as set out in the Accountable Offi cer 
Memorandum.

With regard to the accountability arrangements for the Trust, the following routine meetings are attended 
by the Chief Executive and/or Directors:

Weekly Executive Group  

Monthly performance meetings with the Director of Finance and Director of Operations with General  
Managers

Board meetings held at least seven times a year 

Monthly Clinical Services Executive Committee meetings 

Monthly meetings held with the South West Peninsula Strategic Health Authority and all Peninsular Chief  
Executives

Regular meetings held with the Director of Finance at the South West Peninsula Strategic Health  
Authority and the Director of Finance and Performance

Monthly meetings held between Chief Executive and the senior team from the Trust and the Chief  
Executive and the senior team from the Devon Primary Care Trust.

Membership of the North Devon Way Forward Group  

Membership of the North Devon and the Torridge Local Strategic Partnerships 

Attendance at the Patient and Public Involvement Forum and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
when required

Additionally, the Trust Executive Team have attended Devon Health Community meetings when they  
have been convened

 The purpose of the system of internal control2. 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate 
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed 
to:

Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and objectives,  

Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to  
manage them effi ciently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust for the whole of 
the year ended 31 March 2008 up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

In making this statement, reference must also be made to the action plans derived from the self-assessment 
of the relevant Core Standards for Better Health, the self-assessment for the Auditors Local Evaluation and 
the Head of Internal Audit opinion on the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control systems and 
fi nancial governance.

Statement of internal control 2007/08Statement of internal control 2007/08
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 Capacity to handle risk3. 
The Board and Senior Management are committed to risk management, as this is an integral part of 
achieving the Trust’s objectives and of being accountable to the public.

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for risk management within the Trust.  The Director of 
Finance and Performance has been nominated as the lead Director for risk management.  Each Director 
has responsibility for leading and reporting on the risk management plans for risks identifi ed within their 
directorates.  The Directors are accountable to the Chief Executive in this role.

The line management and professional structures within the Trust ensure that responsibility for the 
implementation of risk management procedures and control of risks are in line with the scheme of 
delegation for their areas of responsibility.  

Statutory Health and Safety training is provided to all staff.  Generic risk assessment training is provided to 
the relevant staff.  Further risk management training, such as managing the corporate risk register and the 
Principal Risk and Assurance Register, is targeted to the appropriate staff.  This has enabled staff to manage 
risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties.  Further training will be provided over the next year.

The Risk Management Strategy was reviewed in order to refl ect the developments in risk management 
throughout the year. The Risk Management Strategy was presented to the Trust Board in March 2008 and 
was approved.

 The risk and control framework4. 
The Risk Management Strategy includes the following:

Details of the aims and objectives for Risk Management in the organisation 

A description of the relationships between various Committees with a role in risk management 

Descriptions of the responsibilities of all levels of management and their levels of authority in respect of  
managing risk and operating a suitable system of internal control

Summaries of the role of key individuals with responsibility for advising on and co-ordinating risk  
management activities

A description of the tools that the organisation use to review risk management performance and for  
gaining assurance about the management of risk

The defi nitions of risk management, risk and other key terms 

Guidance on what is an acceptable risk to the organisation 

It also includes a description of the whole risk management process and requires all risk to be recorded, 
when identifi ed, in a standard format risk register and prioritised using a standard scoring methodology.  
Risk registers, both local and corporate, are in place throughout the organisation.

The Risk Management Strategy clearly states that it is the responsibility of all staff to identify risks and 
communicate those risks to the most appropriate person and/or committee.

The Risk Management Committee was established in December 2006 to monitor and manage both clinical 
and non-clinical risks.  Minutes of the Risk Management Committee meetings are presented to the Audit and 
Assurance Committee, the Clinical Governance Committee and the Trust Board for information.

The role of the Audit and Assurance Committee has been expanded to monitor the management of high-
scoring risks and to approve the management of the Principal Risk and Assurance Register.  High-level clinical 
risks are monitored by the Clinical Governance Committee. The Terms of Reference of these two Committees 
have been amended to refl ect these changes.
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During 2007-08, the processes for populating the Trust’s Corporate Risk Register have been reviewed and 
further refi ned. All identifi ed risks are entered onto the Corporate Risk Register, with supporting action 
plans to mitigate the risk. A robust system for validating the risk assessments and their scores and for 
performance monitoring the progress of the action plans has been put in place, supported by the Risk and 
Incident Manager. Routine reports of new risks, exception reports and those risks that have been accepted 
are presented to the Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis for discussion. 

The reporting schedule of risks has been reviewed to ensure the appropriate level of detail is presented to 
the relevant committees.

The Assurance Framework is monitored by the Audit and Assurance Committee.  Key elements of the 
Assurance Framework are:

Principal objectives 

Principal risks 

Key Controls 

Assurances on Controls 

Gaps in Assurance 

Gaps in Control 

In formulating the Assurance Framework, the Board has reviewed its strategic objectives. In 2006-07, the 
strategic objectives refl ected the Standards for Better Health. Following the development of the Trust’s 
Service and Estates Strategies, the strategic objectives were reviewed to refl ect the organisation’s strategic 
direction. The mission statement and reviewed strategic objectives were approved by the Board in May 2007.  
The strategic objectives are used to confi rm the Board agenda.  The purpose of the Assurance Framework is 
to document the above and is used to examine the level of assurance on the effective operation of controls.

High scoring risks, i.e. with scores of 15 or more, recorded on the Corporate Risk Register are discussed at the 
Risk Management Committee to assess if they represent an example of a strategic organisation-wide risk.  
These risks are recorded on the Principal Risk and Assurance Register, together with a description of existing 
controls and related assurances and any gaps.  The Principal Risk and Assurance Register is monitored by the 
Audit Committee and presented to the Trust Board for approval twice a year.

The reporting schedule of the Principal Risk and Assurance Register has been reviewed to ensure the 
appropriate level of detail is presented to the relevant committees.

The Assurance Framework clearly states that the context for risk management should incorporate 
consideration of the organisation’s stakeholders, including:

Patients 

Service user interests 

Public interests 

Risk aspects of relationships inside and outside of the NHS, including key suppliers of goods and services  
to incorporate:

Ways in which the behaviour of partners affects the Trust –

Way in which the behaviour affects the partners –

The risk priorities of partners 

Wider societal interests 

Ministers and the Department of Health. 
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With regard to compliance with the NHS Pension Scheme regulations, as an employer with staff entitled to 
membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures have been put in place to ensure all employer 
obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that 
deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with 
the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the 
timescales detailed in the Regulations.

I have made a separate reference in Section 5 on the effectiveness of controls in place relating to compliance 
with the NHS Pension Scheme Regulations.

With regard to risks to information, the Trust recognises the need for an appropriate balance between 
openness and confi dentiality in the management and use of information. Information is a vital asset, both in 
terms of the clinical management of individual patients and the effective control of services and resources. It 
plays a major part in clinical governance, service planning and performance management. Control measures 
have been put in place to ensure information is appropriately managed, and policies, clear procedures and 
accountability provide a robust governance framework for information management. These include controls 
to ensure confi dentiality and appropriate security arrangements to safeguard personal information about 
patients, staff and commercially sensitive information. Other control measures ensure adherence to the 
requirements of the Freedom of Information Act and Information Governance toolkit and controlled sharing 
of information with other agencies and health organisations through appropriate information-sharing 
protocols.

 Review of effectiveness5. 
As Accountable Offi cer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
My review is informed in a number of ways. The head of internal audit provides me with an opinion on the 
overall arrangements for gaining assurance through the Assurance Framework and on the controls reviewed 
as part of the internal audit work. Executive managers within the organisation who have responsibility 
for the development and maintenance of the system of internal control provide me with assurance. The 
Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that manage the 
risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives have been reviewed. 

My review has also been informed by:

Audit Commission reports 

Internal Audit reports 

Standards for Better Health assessment of the core and developmental standards 

Auditors Local Evaluation assessment 

Healthcare Commission Reviews 

Internal management reports 

The Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that manage 
the risks to the organisation achieving its strategic objectives have been reviewed.

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control by the Risk Management Committee, the Clinical Governance Committee, the Audit and 
Assurance Committee, the Clinical Services Executive Committee, the Finance and Performance Committee 
and the Trust Board.  The system is subjected to ongoing review and a plan to address weaknesses and 
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The main mechanism for this will be the Assurance Framework and the agreed supporting committee and 
reporting structures that have been put in place from August 2006. The Terms of Reference for the key 
committees are reviewed on an annual basis to refl ect any changes in organisational structure.
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The Board receives the following reports that provide it with assurance on how the controls within the  
organisation are working:

Reports from other committees of the organisation –

Reports from Executive Directors and key managers –

Reports from external reviewers, when received –

The Audit and Assurance Committee receives reports from Internal and External Audit on the work  
conducted by them during the year

Minutes from the relevant committees, e.g. Audit and Assurance Committee, are presented to the Board  
to note

Executive Directors and key managers may present reports to the Board to note or to approve 

The Director of Internal Audit has provided a Head of Internal Audit Opinion commenting on the current  
status of the Assurance Framework and the effectiveness of the Systems of Internal Control reviewed by 
Internal Audit.  This has been used to aid in the preparation of this Statement.

The reporting structure described in the Assurance Framework is used to monitor the systems of internal  
control and make reports to the Board

The Assurance Framework is independently reviewed by Internal Audit on an annual basis 

The Trust has completed three of the fi ve modules for the Auditors Local Evaluation toolkit.  The  
remaining two modules will be completed in June 2008 after the Trust’s fi nal accounts 2007-08 have been 
completed.

The Trust has completed the declaration for Standards for Better Health. 

Issues of Signifi cant Internal Control identifi ed by the Executive Directors will be reported immediately to 
the Chief Executive.  Reports will also be made to the next Executive Group meeting, to the next Board 
meeting and to the next Risk Management Committee meeting.  If required, the issue will be escalated to 
the relevant group, e.g. Audit and Assurance Committee or Clinical Governance Committee. 

Disclosure of a signifi cant internal control issue may contain a description of the weakness and its impact 
to provide context for the actions taken to manage it.  In such cases, the Trust may exercise discretion when 
disclosing a signifi cant internal control issue in order to avoid further adverse impacts or exploitation of the 
weakness.

NHS Pension Scheme Regulations 

The Trust uses the national Electronic Staff Record for recording personal information and calculating 
payroll, including contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme. There is an issue identifi ed as a weakness in the 
assurance I can give in relation to compliance with the NHS Pension Scheme regulations.

It has been recognised that an issue exists whereby the interface created between the NHS Pensions Agency 
and the Electronic Staff Record are not being updated to refl ect certain Electronic Staff Record feeds. An 
example being to update employment end dates. This can cause delays in updating records to the scheme 
time scales.

As Accountable Offi cer, I am not able to give positive assurance of these controls, though corrective action is 
required at a national level.
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Payroll arrangements

In December 2007, the Trust brought back in-house the payroll service as there were control weaknesses 
identifi ed that were not corrected to agreed plans. The Trust took responsibility for  processing payroll from 
1 January 2008.

As part of my assurance, I have commissioned a fully resourced team to undertake a detailed review of all 
weekly and monthly payrolls for the entirety of the outsourcing arrangement.

This work commenced in January 2008 and is expected to continue until September 2008. Based on the 
fi ndings to date, I am not able to provide positive assurance on the accuracy of pension contributions made 
to the NHS Pensions Agency and PAYE contributions to HM Revenue and Customs between December 2006 
and December 2007. 

I have commissioned a review of the in-house payroll service by Internal Audit to benchmark current practice 
and to set recommendations for a programme that will achieve payroll best practice.

Financial recovery

During 2007/08, the Trust has continued to successfully operate the Continuous Improvement Programme 
Offi ce to monitor the achievement of the savings target.

Throughout the year, the Trust has continued to report fortnightly to the Strategic Health Authority on the 
progress against recovery plans. The Continuous Improvement Programme Manager was required to report 
performance against agreed milestones and actions to the Executive Group on a weekly basis and project 
leads were invited as required to update on progress.

The following fortnightly/monthly controls were implemented and remain in place regarding reporting of 
progress of projects, mainly through the presentation of the monthly Continuous Improvement Programme 
Report:

Weekly Executive Group meetings attended by the Programme Manager plus planned attendance of a  
nominated project lead

Monthly Finance and Performance Committee meetings attended by the Programme Manager 

Trust Board meetings held seven times a year attended by the Programme Manager 

Monthly Clinical Services Executive Committee attended by the Programme Manager 

Monthly Project Leads Group attended by the Programme Manager and Deputy Director of Finance 

Monthly Project Lead plus Finance Manager meetings attended by the Programme Manager and Deputy  
Director of Finance

The Trust has detailed plans in place to deliver £4.3m of savings in 2008-09 and will continue to monitor 
delivery to the same methodology and control as detailed above which ensures the Directors, the Board and 
the Strategic Health Authority are assured that recovery remains on track, or that remedial action is taken 
immediately, to ensure that the planned fi nancial position is achieved.

All risks to delivery are reported and scored for input to local and corporate risk registers as required. 

Details of fi nancial performance in 2007-08 and the 2008-09 fi nancial plan are included in the Operating and 
Financial review that forms part of the Trust’s Annual Report.
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Standards for Better Health

Northern Devon Healthcare Trust is required to produce an annual declaration regarding compliance with 
the Healthcare Commission’s Standards for Better Health.  The latest declaration covers the period 1st 
April 2007 to 31st March 2008. Thirty seven core standards out of 43 were compliant all year. Six were not 
compliant for the full year but were compliant by year end.

The six core standards that were not met for the full year 2007-08 comprised:

Standard C7e - Healthcare organisations challenge discrimination, promote equality and respect human 
rights

In the Trust’s Standards for Better Health Declaration for 2006-07, this core standard was declared as being 
non-compliant. The identifi ed reasons included:

There was no production or publication of Equality and Diversity monitoring data.  • 
There was limited learning and development of the workforce in Equality and Diversity.• 

In 2007-08, the core standard remained non-compliant for the following reasons:

Lack of workforce monitoring• 

Equality and Diversity training for all staff required• 

Equality Impact Assessment of documents required• 

Action Taken –

Workforce monitoring report to Board quarterly and published on website• 
Training needs analysis completed.• 
Equality and Diversity training to all staff.• 
Development of Single Equality Scheme.• 
EIA of existing policies underway and being published on website.• 
New Equality and Diversity Website• 
Procurement/Contracts reviewed to ensure Equal Opportunity employers are used.• 

The actions were completed by 31 December 2007. The Trust was compliant for this standard from 1 
January 2008.
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Standard C9 –  Healthcare organisations have a systematic and planned approach to the management of 
records to ensure that, from the moment a record is created until its ultimate disposal, the organisation 
maintains information so that it serves the purpose it was collected for and disposes of the information 
appropriately when no longer required.

In the Trust’s Standards for Better Health Declaration for 2006-07, this core standard was declared as 
being non-compliant. Signifi cant work had been undertaken around records management over the year; 
however a signifi cant lapse around the manual tracking system was not resolved until October 2006.  
Implementation of R0 was dependent on progress within the southern cluster.  Also signifi cant lapses 
around healthcare record storage and the content of the record were not resolved.  Despite the hard 
work and achievement around records management with the Trust, in light of the above lapses, the Trust 
declared ‘not met’ for the whole year.  An action plan was agreed to ensure compliance in 2007-08.

In 2007-08, the core standard remained non-compliant for the following reasons:

Delays in implementing R0.• 
Current storage of records insuffi cient.• 
Record tracking system not adequate.• 
Content of notes not of high standard.• 

Action Taken –

New policies developed.• 
Implementation of New Electronic Tracking System.• 
New training for all record staff of notes storage and retrieval.• 
Project for scanning set up with initial scoping stages completed.• 
Audit of missing notes completed and continual monitoring now in place.• 
Standard of documentation audit completed and medical staff training introduced.• 
New documentation review group set up.• 
Documentation reviewed, standardisation in progress.• 
All risks with regard to documentation now registered on Corporate Risk Register.• 

The actions were completed by 31 December 2007. The Trust was compliant for this standard from 1 
January 2008.

Standard C10a – Healthcare organisations undertake all appropriate employment checks and ensure that 
all employed or contracted professional qualifi ed staff are registered with the appropriate bodies.

In the Trust’s Standards for Better Health Declaration for 2006-07, this core standard was declared as 
being non-compliant. A system for the ongoing monitoring of the professional registration was in place, 
however upon auditing the system the Trust identifi ed one registration lapse which was immediately 
addressed.  The Trust considered it met this standard by year end.

In 2007-08, the core standard remained non-compliant as a review of recruitment processes undertaken 
in January / February 2008 identifi ed that the process for completing CRB checks for junior medical staff, 
commencing in August 2007, had not been fully complied with.  In addition, concerns were identifi ed 
about the completion of pre-employment healthchecks.  

Action Taken –

Audit of recruitment and personnel fi les undertaken.• 
Backlog of CRB checks completed.• 
New policies and processes implemented to strengthen current practice.• 

Start date of non-compliance 1 August 2007. The actions were completed by 31 January 2008. The Trust 
was compliant for this standard from 1 February 2008.
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Standard C14a – Healthcare organisations have systems in place to ensure that patients, their relatives 
and carers have suitable and accessible information about, and clear access to, procedures to register 
formal complaints and feedback on the quality of services.

In the Trust’s Standards for Better Health Declaration for 2006-07, this core standard was declared as 
being non-compliant. A signifi cant lapse occurred when the Trust accumulated a number of long overdue 
complaints.  This was declared to the Healthcare Commission at the start of their complaint audit, 
February 2007.  The backlog of complaints was resolved in January 2007, however defi cits in training 
frontline staff meant the Trust remained non-compliant with the standard.  

In 2007-08, the core standard remained non-compliant for the following reasons:

Lack of training for front line staff.• 
New policies and processes required.• 

Action Taken –

New policy and guidance introduced.• 
Development and implementation of staff training.• 
Improved reporting and monitoring arrangements.• 
Use of DATIX for all complaints.• 
New information leafl ets for staff.• 
Audit of complaints responses completed.• 

The actions were completed by 31 July 2007. The Trust was compliant for this standard from 1 August 
2007.

Standard C14b – Healthcare organisations have systems in place to ensure that patients, their relatives 
and carers are not discriminated against when complaints are made.

In the Trust’s Standards for Better Health Declaration for 2006-07, this core standard was declared as 
being non-compliant. Training defi cits were identifi ed for frontline staff in the initial management of a 
complaint.  The Trust therefore declared ‘not met’ for this standard.  Urgent action was undertaken to 
improve the situation.

In 2007-08, the core standard remained non-compliant for the following reasons:

Complaints policy needed reviewing.• 
Staff training material needed reviewing.• 

Action Taken –

Training needs analysis carried out.• 
Training material reviewed.• 
Complaints leads trained.• 
Complaints training now mandatory for all front line staff.• 
Policies reviewed.• 
Survey of complainants underway.• 

The actions were completed by 31 July 2007. The Trust was compliant for this standard from 1 August 
2007.
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Standard C14c – Healthcare organisations have systems in place to ensure that patients, their relatives 
and carers are assured that organisations act appropriately on any concerns and, where appropriate, 
make changes to ensure improvements in service delivery.

In the Trust’s Standards for Better Health Declaration for 2006-07, this core standard was declared as being 
non-compliant. As stated in C14a, a signifi cant lapse occurred whereby the Trust had a number of overdue 
complaints; similarly training defi cits were identifi ed for frontline staff.

In 2007-08, the core standard remained non-compliant for the following reasons:

A backlog of complaints had developed.• 
New processes were required.• 

Action Taken –

Backlog of complaints cleared.• 
Policies reviewed.• 
More robust process of feedback and learning implemented.• 
Audit of complaints responses completed.• 

The actions were completed by 31 July 2007. The Trust was compliant for this standard from 1 August 
2007.

Using the Healthcare Commission scoring guidance, the Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust is likely to be 
assessed as “Good” for the quality of services and “Fair” for the use of resources.

To continue to support compliance with Standards for Better Health, the Trust has developed a process 
according to the principles below:

Use of a delegated management model, where Executives direct and control the operational staff who  
implement and report achievement

Alignment of Executive Lead responsibilities to achieve consistency with their portfolio 

Active support of the Clinical Governance Support Unit to help executive and operational achievement,  
through monitoring and reporting

Alignment of Non-Executive Directors portfolios to the seven domains of Standards for Better Health 

Early engagement of the Non-Executive Directors in the assessment process 

Provision of assurance reports to: 

Clinical Governance Committee –

Audit and Assurance Committee –

Executive Team Meetings –

Trust Board through the monthly Operational Performance report –

Jac Kelly
Chief Executive
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Introduction
Section 234B and Schedule 7A of the Companies Act, as interpreted for the public sector, requires NHS bodies 
to prepare a remuneration report containing information about directors’ remuneration. In the NHS, the 
report will be in respect of the senior managers of the NHS body. The defi nition of a senior manager is:

“those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling the major 
activities of the NHS body. This means those who infl uence the decisions of the entity as a whole rather than 
the decisions of individual directorates or departments.”

For the purposes of this report, this covers the Trust’s Non-Executive Directors, Executive Directors and 
Associate Directors.

Remuneration report
Details of senior manager’s remuneration and pensions follow.

A)  Remuneration

Name and Title

2007-08 2006-07

Salary 
Other 

Remuneration
Benefi ts 
in Kind

Salary 
Other 

Remuneration
Benefi ts 
in Kind

(bands 
of 

£5000)
£000

(bands of 
£5000)
£000

Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100

(bands 
of 

£5000)
£000

(bands of 
£5000)
£000

Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100

       
J Kelly - Interim Chief Executive 60-65   25-30   
C Mills - Director of Nursing 65-70   65-70   
A Robinson - Director of Finance 
and Performance

100-105   35-40   

C Oliver - Director of HR 65-70   65-70   
I Roy - Director of Facilities 65-70   60-65   
J Gibbs - Director of Operations 80-85   70-75   
Dr A Latham - Associate Medical 
Director (1)

5-10   5-10   

Dr S O’Kelly - Interim Medical 
Director (2)

50-55   35-40   

Dr M Roberts - Medical Director 100-105      
A Diamond - Associate Medical 
Director

20-25   20-25   

M Bignell - Director of 
Organisational Development

60-65   25-30   

K Maynard - Director of 
Development

65-70   30-35   

N Kennelly - Acting Associate 
Director of Community Services

60-65   25-30   

B Sherwin - Chairman 15-20   0-5   
T Gatland - Non-Executive Director 5-10   5-10   
J Lake - Non-Executive Director 5-10   5-10   
A Tucker Jones - Non-Executive 
Director

5-10   0-5   

S Jones - Non-Executive Director 5-10   0-5   
J Reynolds - Non-Executive 
Director (3)

0-5      

(1) The associate medical director left on 02.08.07
(2) The interim medical director left on 30.09.07
(3) The Non-Executive Director was appointed on 01.06.07

Remuneration report 2007/08Remuneration report 2007/08
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B)  Pension Benefi ts
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£2500)
£000

(bands 
of 

£5000)
£000

£000 £000 £000

To 
nearest 

£100

(bands 
of 

£2500)
£000

(bands 
of 

£5000)
£000

£000 £000 £000

To 
nearest 

£100

             
C Mills 0-2.5 65-70 204 122 8  7.5-10 60-65 122 155 32  
A Robinson 17.5-20 80-85 298 201 134  -0-2.5 55-60 201 159 (48)    
C Oliver 2.5-5 50-55 140 123 13  7.5-10 45-50 123 97 17  
I Roy 7.5-10 85-90 295 250 39  10-12.5 75-80 250 201 31  
J Gibbs 5-7.5 65-70 203 171 28  12.5-15 55-60 171 122 32  
K Maynard 7.5-10 70-75 262 228 28   65-70 228    
M Bignell 2.5-4 25-30 110 84 24  2.5-5 20-25 84 67 5  
N Kennelly 10-12.5 80-85 271 216 49  0-2.5 65-70 216 201 4  
M Roberts  80-85 10          

A Diamond  
135-
140

471          

Notes
(1) The Interim Chief Executive does not receive pensionable remuneration.
(2) As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect 
of pensions for Non-Executive members.
(3) For directors employed during the year, there is no corresponding data for the previous year to refl ect 
movements.
(4) A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme 
benefi ts accrued by a member at a particular point in time.  The benefi ts valued are the member’s accrued 
benefi ts and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme.  A CETV is a payment made by a 
pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefi ts in another pension scheme or arrangement 
when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefi ts accrued in their former scheme.  The 
pension fi gures shown relate to the benefi ts that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total 
membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies.  
The CETV fi gures, and from 2004-05 the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefi ts 
in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme.  They 
also include any additional pension benefi t accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional 
years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost.  CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and 
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
(5) Real Increase in CETV - This refl ects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer.  It takes 
account of the increase in accrued pension due to infl ation, contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefi ts transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common 
market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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Remuneration terms of services committee
The Trust’s Remuneration Committee in a Non-Executive Committee. The membership is the Chairman plus 
the fi ve Non-Executive Directors. Executive Directors may be present, as and when required.

The remuneration of senior managers
The remuneration of senior managers is set out in the Terms and Conditions of Service. The performance of 
senior managers is assessed through the formal appraisal process, based on organisational and individual 
objectives. No element of the remuneration of senior managers is subject to performance conditions. All 
contracts contain a 3-month notice period and no contracts contain a provision for termination payments 
other than those agreed nationally and under statutory requirements for Redundancy Payments.

Non-Executive Directors
The dates of contracts and unexpired terms of offi ce for the Non-Executive Directors (NED) are as follows:

Name Appointment start date Appointment end date
Brian Sherwin (Chairman) 01/02/07 31/01/11
Tony Gatland (NED) 01/12/04 30/11/08
June Lake (NED) 01/07/07 31/06/11
Sam Jones (NED) 01/10/06 30/09/10
Amelia Tucker-Jones (NED) 11/12/06 10/12/10
Jane Reynolds (NED) 01/06/07 31/05/11

Non-Executive Directors are paid an allowance for their work on the Board and do not hold a contract of 
employment with the Trust. There is no period of notice required for Non-Executive Directors and their 
appointment is organised by the NHS Appointments Commission.

Executive Directors and Associate Directors
Name Position Contract Type Start Date Employment status

Jac Kelly Chief Executive Fixed Term 16.10.06
Contract was 
renewed on 15.04.08

Andy Robinson
Director of Finance and 
Performance

Permanent 15.11.06

Sean O’Kelly Interim Medical Director
Seconded from 
Swindon NHS Trust

01.10.06
Secondment end 
date 31.08.07

Carolyn Mills Director of Nursing Permanent 08.08.05
Catherine Oliver Director of Human Resources Permanent 13.09.04
Joanne Gibbs Director of Operations Permanent 18.04.05
Iain Roy Director of Facilities Permanent 19.04.99
Maureen 
Bignell

Director of Organisational 
Development

Permanent 01.10.06

Nikki Kennelly
Director of Community 
Services

Acting 01.10.06 Ended 30.04.08

Alison Diamond
Associate Medical Director

Permanent 01.10.06

Kate Maynard Director of Development Permanent 01.02.07
Dr Michael 
Roberts

Medical Director Permanent 01.10.07

Jill Smith
Interim Director of Health 
and Social Care

Fixed Term 01.05.08
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Head of Internal Audit Opinion on the efffectiveness of the 
system of Internal Control at Northern Devon Healthcare 
NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2008

Roles and Responsibilities

The whole Board is collectively accountable for maintaining a sound system of internal control and is 
responsible for putting in place arrangements for gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that overall 
system.

The Statement on Internal Control (SIC) is an annual statement by the Accountable Offi cer, on behalf of the 
Board, setting out:

how the individual responsibilities of the Accountable Offi cer are discharged with regard to maintaining  
a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of policies, aims and objectives;

the purpose of the system of internal control as evidenced by a description of the risk management and  
review processes, including the Assurance Framework process; and

the conduct and results of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control including any  
disclosures of signifi cant control failures together with assurances that actions are or will be taken where 
appropriate to address issues arising.

The organisation’s Assurance Framework should bring together all of the evidence required to support the 
Statement on Internal Control requirements.

In accordance with NHS Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) is required to provide an 
annual opinion, based upon and limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness 
of the organisations risk management, control and governance processes (i.e. the organisation’s system 
of internal control).  This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and 
approved by the Audit Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance, subject to the 
inherent limitations described below.

The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit have reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the 
organisation.  The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans generated from a 
robust and organisation-led Assurance Framework.  As such, it is one component that the Board takes into 
account in making its Statement on Internal Control.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion

The purpose of my Head of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available to the 
Accountable Offi cer and the Board which underpin the Board’s own assessment of the effectiveness of the 
organisation’s system of internal control.  This Opinion will, in turn, assist the Board in the completion of its 
Statement on Internal Control and may also be taken into account by the Healthcare Commission in relation 
to the Standards for Better Health.

My opinion is set out as follows:

Overall opinion;1. 

Basis for the opinion; and2. 

Commentary.3. 
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My overall opinion is that

Signifi cant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound system of internal control, designed to 
meet the organisation’s objectives and that controls are generally being applied consistently.  However, 
some weakness in the design and/or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of particular 
objectives at risk.  

The Trust has continued to strengthen its systems of internal control over 2007/08.  The continued 
development and embedment of the Assurance Framework at Board level will further strengthen the overall 
control environment within the Trust. 

The basis for forming my opinion is as follows.

An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance Framework and supporting 1. 
processes.

An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit assignments contained 2. 
within internal audit risk-based plans that have been reported throughout the year. This assessment 
has taken account of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress in respect of 
addressing control weaknesses.

An assessment of the process by which the organisation has arrived at its declaration in respect of the 3. 
Standards for Better Health.

Any reliance that is being place on third party assurances.4. 

The commentary below provides the context for my opinion and together with the opinion should be read in 
its entirety.

Internal Audit’s work has been taken forward in fi ve broad categories.  The following summarises the 
opinions and assurances from the reviews undertaken in these areas.

Assurance Framework

Internal Audit have reviewed the design and operation of the Assurance Framework/Principal Risk and 
Assurance Register and associated processes within the Trust over the course of the year.   This work focused 
on reviewing the Principle Risk and Assurance Register document and how this has evolved during the 
year, whether it complies with Department of Health guidance and if the Trust Board is actually using the 
framework as an active tool. 

Our overall opinion is that the arrangements in relation to the Assurance Framework have continued to 
develop during the year and we are able to provide positive assurance that the Trust has further progressed 
the development and embedment of the Assurance Framework process during 2007/08.  The Framework was 
further developed during the year by linking it to corporate, Trust wide risks and by further defi ning the 
review process via the Senior Management Team, Audit and Assurance Committee and the Board.  However 
it should be noted that the Board action plan element of the Principle Risk Register has only been to the 
Trust Board three times during the year, June July and March 2008, this in the main has been due to the 
continued development of the register throughout the year.

Risk Management

Audit can provide positive assurance that the Trust is working to towards fully embedding Risk Management 
throughout all areas of the Trust.  Our review of risk management arrangements confi rmed that the risk 
management system is robust and visible and it is expected to become stronger and more embedded over a 
period of time. 

Good practices have been defi ned and put in place by the Corporate Affairs Team and signifi cant assurance 
was provided that risk management arrangements are in line with the Trust Risk Management Strategy.
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Standards for Better Health

Internal Audit have undertaken a limited review of the Standards for Better Health declaration process 
within the Trust for 2007/08.  Overall, positive assurance can be provided that both the process of gathering 
evidence and supporting/monitoring Standard Leads has improved from the previous year’s review.  The Trust 
has put in place a good monitoring and challenge system where non-executive directors have been assigned 
responsibility for monitoring the Trust compliance with individual standards.  This monitoring process has 
provided the Trust with clarity on its compliance position throughout the year and has actively put processes 
in place to make improvements where necessary.

The Trust appears to have worked well towards gathering suffi cient evidence to comply with the Healthcare 
Commission criteria and at the year end declared compliance against 37 standards and “not met” on the 
remaining six, all of which were met by the year end.  This is consistent with the outcome of our audit 
review. 

Financial Assurance

Internal Audit has conducted a number of reviews in relation to the fi nancial systems of the Trust.  These 
reviews have concluded, overall, that the current systems in place represent a low risk to the Trust, with the 
exception of the operation of the payroll system.  An outline of the key audit work on fi nancial systems is 
noted below.  

Financial Recovery Planning and Reporting
Two audit reviews were undertaken of the systems established to monitor and report on the achievement 
of fi nancial targets, the initial review concentrating on the process for managing and reporting on recovery 
plans, the latter related to a follow up of the achievement of recovery plans. These audits concluded that 
positive assurance could be provided that there is a process in place to provide the Board with high level 
reporting, which is supported by a monitoring process covering the delivery of the Financial Recovery 
Plan.  This includes regular monitoring reports to the Board.  It should be noted that the Trust has reported 
achieving 92% of the Continuous improvement plan target, although not all directly achievable to the 
savings projects which were implemented during the year.

Assurance has been provided by Internal Audit regarding the fact that the Board was being correctly 
reported to, and that the reports appropriately refl ected the fi nancial position of the Trust.

Core Financial Systems
Audit work has also been undertaken during the year on the core fi nancial systems of the Trust, in line 
with the requirements of International Auditing Standards to meet the requirements of the Trust’s external 
auditors, the Audit Commission.  Although not all these audits have been fi nalised at the date of this 
statement positive assurance can be provided that the systems in place are operating satisfactorily.  Attention 
is drawn, however to the operation of the payroll system, which was highlighted as being of medium risk to 
the Trust.  

Payroll
In December 2006 the Trust outsourced its payroll provision to University Hospitals Birmingham (UHB) 
following a tendering process.  Since the transfer of the service the Trust experienced problems with the 
service provided, to the degree that Internal Audit were asked by the Trust to review the payroll function at 
UHB.  This Review highlighted a number of concerns which supported management’s decision to withdraw 
the payroll function from UHB.

In December 2007 the decision was made by the Trust to bring the payroll function back in house.  Internal 
Audit are in the process of reviewing the new in house Payroll team and the work of the recovery team.  This 
work is currently being fi nalised, however it indicates substantial improvement in the level of control since 
the service was brought back in house. 
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Corporate Assurance

In addition to the audit reviews noted above in relation to the assurance framework, risk management, 
standards for better health and fi nancial systems, audit reviews have been undertaken on a range of 
corporate systems and areas with fi nal audit reports being issued over the following areas:

Appraisal Systems; 

Clinical Governance Arrangements; 

IM&T Governance Toolkit; 

Tenders & Quotes; 

Stocks Disposal Process; 

Maintenance and Repair of Beds; 

Asbestos Removal; and  

National Fraud Initiative. 

Positive Assurance has been provided to the Trust over the systems of control in place over these areas.  In 
a number of cases the systems have been subject to signifi cant development over the year and the audit 
reports refl ected these developing arrangements.  

Attention is drawn to the following areas:

Appraisal System – this review was requested by the Trust following concerns with regards to the  
accuracy of data records on the ESR system which suggested that staff appraisals and mandatory training 
levels were lower than expected.  The audit review identifi ed that this data was substantially inaccurate.  
The Trust has taken proactive action to ensure that the systems involved are more robust.

Maintenance and Repair of Beds – This review was undertaken due to concerns raised over the systems  
for managing the maintenance and repair of beds throughout the Trust.  The audit identifi ed concerns in 
relation to the completeness, accuracy and timeliness of the regular annual maintenance of beds and the 
lack of a regular review by management of the overall progress against the annual programme of bed 
maintenance.  Audit is aware that since the review, management arrangements have been changed for 
this area and action has been undertaken to improve the system including a new procedure and related 
forms. 

In respect of the reviews above and other audits undertaken during the year, recommendations have been 
agreed with management to address gaps in control and assurance.  Internal Audit has monitored the status 
of these recommendations over the year, reporting directly to the Audit and Assurance Committee on those 
recommendations which are outstanding.  

At the date of writing this opinion statement, a number of audit reviews are being fi nalised, in particular in 
relation to Payroll Post implementation, Clinical Audit, Performance Management, Internet Management, 
and Medical Records.  While a number of control issues and recommendations will be reported as a result of 
these reviews there are no fundamental matters arising that may impact upon this opinion statement.  

Ian Whyte
Director of Internal Audit Services
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 

NORTHERN DEVON HEALTHCARE NHS TRUST 
 

These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008 have been prepared by the Northern Devon 
Healthcare NHS Trust under section 98(2) of the National Health Service Act 1977 (as amended 
by section 24(2), schedule 2 of the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990) in 
the form which the Secretary of State has, with the approval of the Treasury, directed. 
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 March 2008 

      

      

   2007/08  2006/07 

 NOTE  £000 £000 

      

Income from activities 3  110,079  80,655 

      

Other operating income 4  8,339  8,892 

      

Operating expenses 5  (108,525)  (94,519) 

      

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)   9,893  (4,972)  

      

Cost of fundamental reorganisation/restructuring   0  0 

Profit/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets 8  0  (42)  

      

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BEFORE INTEREST   9,893  (5,014)  

      

Interest receivable    470  163 

Interest payable 9  (4)  (5)  

Other finance costs - unwinding of discount 16  0  0 

      

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR   10,359  (4,856)  

      

Public Dividend Capital dividends payable   (2,757)  (2,068) 

      

RETAINED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR   7,602  (6,924) 

      

The notes on pages 59 to 91 form part of these accounts.      

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.     
      
      

Trust Narrative:      

      

As part of the recovery plan of the Trust, agreement was reached with NHS South West Strategic 
Health Authority and Devon Primary Care Trust that would support the Trust in achieving its 
extended 5 year break even duty as detailed in note 23.1. The Trust was set performance targets 
that included a financial target of breaking even on its income and expenditure in 2007/08 and 
received additional income of £7,600k from Devon PCT as a contribution to eliminating the 
cumulative deficit.  
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 
31 March 2008 

   

31 March 
2008  

31 March 
2007 

 NOTE  £000 £000 

FIXED ASSETS      
     

Intangible assets 10 543  130 

Tangible assets 11 82,089  77,717 

Investments 14.1 0  0 

  82,632  77,847 

CURRENT ASSETS     
     

Stocks and work in progress 12 1,971  1,746 

Debtors 13 6,244  13,342 

Investments 14.2 0  0 

Cash at bank and in hand 18.3 2,343  308 

  10,558  15,396 
     

CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due within one year 15 (11,263)  (15,428) 
       

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)  (705)  (32) 
       

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES  81,927  77,815 
     

CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due after more than one year 15 0  (58) 
     

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES 16 (67)  (121) 
       

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED  81,860  77,636 

FINANCED BY:     
     

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY     

Public dividend capital 22 57,717  63,035 

Revaluation reserve 17 26,315  24,304 

Donated asset reserve 17 1,268  1,333 

Government grant reserve 17 107  113 

Other reserves* 17 0  0 

Income and expenditure reserve 17 (3,547)  (11,149)  
     

TOTAL TAXPAYERS' EQUITY  81,860  77,636 

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 3 June 2008 and signed on its behalf by: 

 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ……………….………………………………….(Chief Executive)   Date: 17 June 2008 
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED  

31 March 2008  

     

 2007/08  2006/07  

 £000  £000  

     

Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year before dividend payments 10,359  (4,856)  

     

Fixed asset impairment losses (2,763)  (2,371)  

     

Unrealised surplus/(deficit) on fixed asset revaluations/indexation 4,868  4,331  

     
Increases in the donated asset and government grant reserve due to 
receipt of donated and government grant financed assets 33 

 
1,060 

 

     

Defined benefit scheme actuarial gains/(losses)     

     

Additions/(reductions) in "other reserves" 0  0  

     

Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year 12,497  (1,836)  

     

Prior period adjustment 0  0  

     

Total gains and losses recognised in the financial year 12,497  (1,836)  
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 March 2008 

       
    2007/08  2006/07 
  NOTE  £000  £000 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES       
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  18.1 15,456  (1,178)  
      
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE:      
Interest received   470  163 
Interest paid   0  0 
Interest element of finance leases   (4)  (5) 
      
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from returns on investments 
and servicing of finance   

466  158 

      
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE      
(Payments) to acquire tangible fixed assets   (5,298)  (26,178) 
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets   0  1,126 
(Payments) to acquire intangible assets   (461)  (132) 
Receipts from sale of intangible assets   0  0 
(Payments to acquire)/receipts from sale of fixed asset 
investments  0  0 
      
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from capital expenditure   (5,759)  (25,184) 
      
DIVIDENDS PAID   (2,757)  (2,068) 
        
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before management of liquid 
resources and financing   

7,406  (28,272) 

      
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES      
(Purchase) of investments with DH   0  0 
(Purchase) of other current asset investments   0  0 
Sale of investments with DH   0  0 
Sale of other current asset investments   0  0 
      
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from management of liquid resources 0  0 
        
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing   7,406  (28,272) 
      
FINANCING      
      
Public dividend capital received   2,644  28,313 
Public dividend capital repaid (not previously accrued)   (7,962)  0 
Loans received from DH   0  0 
Other loans received   0  0 
Loans repaid to DH   0  0 
Other loans repaid   0  0 
Other capital receipts   33  115 
Capital element of finance lease rental payments   (86)  (115) 
        
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing   (5,371)  28,313 
      
Increase/(decrease) in cash   2,035  41 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
  
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
 The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet 

the accounting requirements of the NHS Trust Manual for Accounts which shall be agreed with HM 
Treasury.  The accounting policies contained in that manual follow UK generally accepted 
accounting practice and HM Treasury's Government Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that 
they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS.  The accounting policies have been applied 
consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts. 

  
1.1 Accounting convention 
  

 

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the 
revaluation of fixed assets at their value to the business by reference to their current costs. NHS 
Trusts are not required to provide a reconciliation between current cost and historical cost surpluses 
and deficits. 

  
1.2 Acquisitions and discontinued operations 
  

 

Activities are considered to be 'acquired' only if they are acquired from outside the public sector.  
Activities are considered to be 'discontinued' only if they cease entirely.  They are not considered to 
be 'discontinued' if they transfer from one public sector body to another. 

  
1.3 Income Recognition 
  

 

Income is accounted for applying the accruals convention.  The main source of income for the Trust 
is from commissioners in respect of healthcare services provided under local agreements.  Income is 
recognised in the period in which services are provided.  Where income is received for a specific 
activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that income is deferred. 

  
1.4 Care Trust designation 
  
 Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust is not designated as a Care Trust. 
  
1.5 Pooled Budgets      
  

 

As a result of Vertical Integration of specific services from the former North Devon PCT into the 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust from 1 October 2006, the Trust has entered into a pooled 
budget with Devon PCT and Devon County Council. These accounts are the first to reflect a full 12 
months contribution to the pool (2006/07 6 months from 1 October 2006). Under the arrangement 
the funds are pooled under S31 of the Health Act 1999 for a store of equipment for home based 
care. Note 26 to the accounts provides details of the income and expenditure. 
 
The pool is hosted by Devon County Council. Payments for services provided by the Trust are 
accounted for as income from Health Service bodies. The Trust accounts for its share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in 
accordance with the pooled budget agreement. 

 
1.6 Intangible fixed assets 
  

 

Intangible assets are capitalised when they are capable of being used in a Trust's activities for more 
than one year; they can be valued; and they have a cost of at least £5,000.  
 
Intangible fixed assets held for operational use are valued at historical cost and are depreciated over 
the estimated life of the asset on a straight line basis, except capitalised Research and Development 
which is re-valued using an appropriate index figure.   
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The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment at the end of the first full year 
following acquisition and in other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying 
value may not be recoverable. 

  

 

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where expenditure of 
at least £5,000 is incurred.  They are amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and their 
useful economic lives. 
 

1.7 Tangible fixed assets 
  
 Capitalisation 
  

 

Tangible assets are capitalised if they are capable of being used for a period which exceeds one year 
and they: 
- individually have a cost of at least £5,000;  or 
 
- collectively have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where 

the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are 
anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control;  or 

 
- form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit 

irrespective of their individual or collective cost. 
  

 

Expenditure on digital hearing aids in the year ended 31 March 2004 (but not in earlier years) was 
treated as capital expenditure, in accordance with the amendment to the Capital Accounting 
Manual issued in July 2003, giving rise to an increase in fixed assets regardless of the cost of the 
individual hearing aids.  Subsequent purchases of digital hearing aids are capitalised only when the 
total value is greater than £5,000.  Where small numbers of appliances are purchased the costs are 
expensed as incurred. 

  

 

The NHS Capital Accounting Manual was withdrawn in February 2008. Expenditure on digital 
hearing aids in the year ended 31 March 2008 (but not in earlier years) was treated as revenue 
expenditure and charged to the Income & Expenditure Account. 

  
 Valuation 
  

 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at the lower of replacement cost and recoverable amount.  On initial 
recognition they are measured at cost (for leased assets, fair value) including any costs such as 
installation directly attributable to bringing them into working condition.  They are restated to 
current value each year.  The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment in 
periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

  

 

All land and buildings are restated to current value using professional valuations in accordance with 
FRS15 every five years and in the intervening years by the use of indices.  The buildings index is 
based on the All in Tender Price Index published by the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS).  The 
land index is based on the residential building land values reported in the Property Market Report 
published by the Valuation Office. 
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2

The following information segments the results of the NHS Trust by:

- Healthcare activities, being all the other activities of the NHS Trust

Total

£000

2007/08 2006/07 2007/08 2006/07

INCOME 118,418 89,547 118,418 89,547

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
Segment surplus/(deficit) 7,602 (6,924) 7,602 (6,924) 
Common costs 0 0

Surplus/(deficit) before interest 9,893 (5,014) 9,893 (5,014) 

NET ASSETS:
Segment net assets 81,860 77,636 81,860 77,636

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Healthcare Activity

£000
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3. Income from Activities        

 2007/08 2006/07     

 £000 £000     

Strategic Health Authorities 0  0     

NHS Trusts 0  0     

Primary Care Trusts 107,237  77,355     

Foundation Trusts 0  0     

Local Authorities 0  0     

Department of Health 1,730  2,116     

NHS Other 0  0     

Non NHS:       

      - Private patients 787  889     

      - Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 0  0     

      - Road Traffic Act -  209     

      - Injury cost recovery 275  0     

      - Other 50  86     

         

 110,079  80,655    
        

Road Traffic Act income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 7.7% to reflect expected rates of collection. 
        
Injury cost recovery income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 7.8% to reflect expected rates of 
collection. 

      
From 1 October 2006, Community Hospitals and other agreed community services were transferred to the 
management and control of the Trust from North Devon PCT. The full year income associated with this transfer 
was £19,344,091 (2006/07 part year income was £9,739,265). 

4.  Other Operating Income        

        

 2007/08 2006/07     

 £000 £000     

Patient transport services 0  0     

Education, training and research 2,757  2,460     

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 59  41     

Transfers from donated asset reserve  183  160     

Transfers from government grant reserve 15  14     

Non-patient care services to other bodies 2,312  3,309     

Income Generation 690  654     

Other income 2,323  2,254     

         

 8,339  8,892     
Other income includes dermatology income, car park receipts, accommodation charges and contributions to staff 
costs. 
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5.  Operating Expenses

5.1 Operating expenses comprise:

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

Services from other NHS Trusts 262 149
Services from PCTs 0 0
Services from other NHS bodies 24 1,058
Services from Foundation Trusts 460 243
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies 0 0
Directors' costs 929 785
Staff costs 75,120 65,447
Supplies and services - clinical 13,619 11,582
Supplies and services - general 4,789 4,390
Consultancy services 69 91
Establishment 1,689 1,418
Transport 681 539
Premises 3,726 3,129
Bad debts 0 0
Depreciation 4,737 3,575
Amortisation 53 2
Fixed asset impairments and reversals 0 0
Audit fees 153 156
Other auditor's remuneration 0 0
Clinical negligence 1,339 1,149
Redundancy costs 0 0
Other 875 806

                             
108,525 94,519
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5.2 Operating leases

5.2/1 Operating expenses include:

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

Hire of plant and machinery 269 147
Other operating lease rentals 0 0

269 147

5.2/2  Annual commitments under non - cancellable operating leases are:

2007/08 2006/07 2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000 £000 £000

Operating leases which expire:

Within 1 year 0 0 107 1
Between 1 and 5 years 0 0 24 130
After 5 years 0 0 111 111

0 0 242 242
                                                            

Land and buildings Other leases
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6.  Staff costs and numbers

6.1 Staff costs

 2006/07
Total Permanently 

Employed
Other

£000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 63,966 62,365 1,601 55,115
Social Security Costs 4,578 4,578 0 4,301
Employer contributions to  NHS Pension
Scheme 7,489 7,489 0 6,610
Other pension costs 16 16 0 75

                              
76,049 74,448 1,601 66,101

               

6.2 Average number of persons employed

2006/07
Total Permanently 

Employed
Other

Number Number Number Number

Medical and dental 217 212 5 194
Ambulance staff 0 0 0 0
Administration and estates 514 504 10 501
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 415 415 0 430
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 634 625 9 625
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners 0 0 0 0
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 246 244 2 249
Social care staff 0 0 0 0
Other 2 2 0 0

               
Total 2,028 2,002 26 1,999

                             

                             

2007/08

2007/08
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6.3 Employee benefits

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

None 0 0
                             

0 0

6.4 Management costs
2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000

Management costs 5,558 4,892

Income 118,418 89,547

6.5 Retirements due to ill-health

Management costs are defined as those on the management costs website at 
www.dh.gov.uk/PolicyAndGuidance/OrganisationPolicy/FinanceAndPlanning/NHSManagementCosts/fs/en..

During 2007/08 there were 2 (2006/07 6) early retirements from the NHS Trust on the grounds of ill-health.  
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £48,033 (2006/07 
£598,550).  The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority -
Pensions Division.
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7.  Better Payment Practice Code

7.1    Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance

Number £000

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 37,963 32,295
Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target 25,543 20,939
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 67% 65%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 608 2,963
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 165 1,058
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 27% 36%

7.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000

Amounts included within Interest Payable (Note 9) arising from 
claims made under this legislation 0 0

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation 0 0

8.  Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Profit/(loss) on the disposal of fixed assets is made up as follows:
2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000

Profit on disposal of fixed asset investments 0 0
(Loss) on disposal of fixed asset investments 0 0
Profit on disposal of intangible fixed assets 0 0
(Loss) on disposal of intangible fixed assets 0 0
Profit on disposal of land and buildings 0 0
(Loss) on disposal of land and buildings 0 0
Profits on disposal of plant and equipment 0 0
(Loss) on disposal of plant and equipment 0 (42)

              
0 (42)

No major property disposals have occurred.

9.  Interest Payable
 2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000

Finance leases 4 5
Late payment of commercial debt 0 0
Loans 0 0
Other 0 0

                             
4 5

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the 
due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

2007/08
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10.  Intangible Fixed Assets

Software Licenses and Patents Development Total
licences trademarks expenditure 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Gross cost at 1 April 2007 132 0 0 0 132
Indexation 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments (5) 0 0 0 (5) 
Reclassifications 10 0 0 0 10
Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0
Additions purchased 461 0 0 0 461
Additions donated 0 0 0 0 0
Additions government granted 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0
Gross cost at 31 March 2008 598 0 0 0 598

Amortisation at 1 April 2007 2 0 0 0 2
Indexation 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments 0 0 0 0 0
Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0
Charged during the year 53 0 0 0 53
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0
Amortisation at 31 March 2008 55 0 0 0 55

Net book value
- Purchased at 1 April 2007 130 0 0 0 130
- Donated at 1 April 2007 0 0 0 0 0
- Government granted at 1 April 2007 0 0 0 0 0
- Total at 1 April 2007 130 0 0 0 130

- Purchased at 31 March 2008 543 0 0 0 543
- Donated at 31 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0
- Government granted at 31 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0
- Total at 31 March 2008 543 0 0 0 543
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11. Tangible Fixed Assets

11.1 Tangible fixed assets at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under
construction 

and payments
on account* 

Plant and 
machinery

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2007 15,215 52,829 1,906 1,783 15,662 29 2,432 94 89,950
Additions purchased 0 1,899 0 1,037 3,202 8 810 20 6,976
Additions donated 0 0 0 0 33 0 0 0 33
Additions government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments 0 (2,123) 0 (631) 0 0 (4) 0 (2,758) 
Reclassifications 0 634 0 (1,805) 7 0 1,152 2 (10) 
Indexation 822 4,378 159 140 404 0 0 3 5,906
Revaluation 0 (754) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (754) 
Disposals 0 0 0 0 (418) (25) (717) 0 (1,160) 
Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2008 16,037 56,863 2,065 524 18,890 12 3,673 119 98,183

Depreciation at 1 April 2007 0 0 0 0 10,332 25 1,850 26 12,233
Charged during the year 0 2,365 56 0 1,755 2 549 10 4,737
Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reversal of Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 7 0 (7) 0 0
Indexation 0 0 0 0 283 0 0 1 284
Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0 (418) (25) (717) 0 (1,160) 
Depreciation at 31 March 2008 0 2,365 56 0 11,959 2 1,675 37 16,094

Net book value 
- Purchased at 1 April 2007 15,215 51,847 1,906 1,783 4,870 0 582 68 76,271
- Donated at 1 April 2007 0 869 0 0 460 4 0 0 1,333
- Government granted at 1 April 2007 0 113 0 0 0 0 0 0 113
- Total at 1 April 2007 15,215 52,829 1,906 1,783 5,330 4 582 68 77,717

- Purchased at 31 March 2008 16,037 53,482 2,009 524 6,575 7 1,998 82 80,714
- Donated at 31 March 2008 0 909 0 0 356 3 0 0 1,268
- Government granted at 31 March 2008 0 107 0 0 0 0 0 0 107
- Total at 31 March 2008 16,037 54,498 2,009 524 6,931 10 1,998 82 82,089
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11.1 Tangible Fixed Assets (contd)

Land Buildings, 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under
construction 

and payments
on account 

Plant and 
machinery

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
At 31 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2007 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets under
construction 

and payments
on account 

Plant and 
machinery

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Depreciation 31 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 31 March 2007 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Of the totals at 31 March 2008, £0 related to land valued at open market value and £0 related to buildings valued at open market value and £0 related to dwellings 
valued at open market value.

The total amount of depreciation charged to the income and expenditure in respect of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts: 

The net book value of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts at the balance sheet date are as follows: 
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 31 March 2008 31 March 2007
£000 £000

Freehold 72,544 69,950
Long leasehold 0 0
Short leasehold 0 0

TOTAL 72,544 69,950

12.  Stocks and Work in Progress
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

£000 £000

Raw materials and consumables 1,971 1,746
Work-in-progress 0 0
Finished goods 0 0

TOTAL 1,971 1,746

13.  Debtors
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

£000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

NHS debtors 3,820 11,668
Provision for irrecoverable debts (62) (55)
Other prepayments and accrued income 478 388
Other debtors 1,746 1,011
Sub Total 5,982 13,012

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

NHS debtors 0 0
Provision for irrecoverable debts 0 0
Other prepayments and accrued income 0 0
Other debtors 262 330
Sub Total 262 330

TOTAL 6,244 13,342

Other Debtors include £0 prepaid pension contributions at 31 March 2008 (£0 at 31 March 2007)

11.2 The net book value of land, buildings and dwellings at 31 March 2008 comprises:
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14.  Investments

14.1 Fixed Asset Investments
Description Description Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2007 0 0 0 0
Additions 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0
Revaluations 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2008 0 0 0 0

14.2 Current Asset Investments
EU emissions Department 

trading scheme  of Health Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2007 0 0 0 0
Additions 0 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 0
Revaluations 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2008 0 0 0 0

The Trust has no current asset investments.

The Trust has no fixed asset investments.
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15.1  Creditors at the balance sheet date are made up of:
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

£000 £000

0 0
0 0
0 0

47 39
1,465 8,127
2,034 2,689
2,106 481

905 954
Social security costs 658 736

87 115
1,763 1,098
2,198 1,189

Sub Total 11,263 15,428

0 0
0 58
0 0
0 0

Sub Total 0 58
                            

TOTAL 11,263 15,486
                              

-

   
-

15.  Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank overdrafts
Current instalments due on loans
Interest payable
Payments received on account
NHS creditors
Non - NHS trade creditors - revenue
Non - NHS trade creditors - capital
Tax 

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Long - term loans

There are no payments due in future years under arrangements to buy out the liability for early 
retirements over 5 years; and

£930,015 outstanding pensions contributions at 31 March 2008 (31 March 2007 £972,051).

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
NHS creditors
Other

Other creditors include;
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15.2  Loans [and other long-term financial liabilities] 
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

£000 £000
Amounts falling due:
In one year or less 0 0
Between one and two years 0 0
Between two and five years 0 0
Over 5 years 0 0

                              
TOTAL 0 0

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
£000 £000

Wholly repayable within five years 0 0
Wholly repayable after five years, not by instalments 0 0
Wholly or partially repayable after five years, by instalments 0 0

TOTAL 0 0
                              

Total repayable after five years by instalments

Loans [and long-term financial liabilities] wholly or partially repayable after five years:
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Value Value
Interest rate outstanding outstanding

       % £000 £000
Terms of payment

The Trust does not have any loans.

15.3 Finance lease obligations
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

£000 £000
Payable:
Within one year 87 115
Between one and five years 0 58
After five years 0 0

                              
87 173

Less finance charges allocated to future periods 0 0
                              

87 173

15.4 Finance Lease Commitments

 

Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust has entered into a contract to lease a number of pieces of equipment 
under a finance lease, whereby the asset will be made available for use and rental payments commence in April 
2005.  The minimum payments under the lease total are £86,500, payable over 1 year.
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16.   Provisions for liabilities and charges

Pensions 
relating to 

former 
directors 

Pensions 
relating to 
other staff

Legal claims Restructurings O

£000 £000 £000 £000 £

At 1 April 2007 0 0 29 0
Arising during the year 0 0 22 0
Utilised during the year 0 0 (18) 0
Reversed unused 0 0 (18) 0
Unwinding of discount 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2008 0 0 15 0

Expected timing of cashflows:

Within one year 0 0 15 0
Between one and five years 0 0 0 0
After five years 0 0 0 0

£8,319,068 is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2008 in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of t
(31 March 2007 £9,090,198.79)

Legal Claims - relates to provisions for the member's excess due in Employer Liability cases as notifies by the NHS Litigation Authorit
the excess due by the Trust since the NHS Litigation Authority make the majority of payments and recharge the Trust in due course. A
liability £7,312 is shown in note 21 ( 2006/07 £16,625)

Other claims include £52,000 (2006/07 £92,000) for potential redundancies
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17.    Movements on Reserves

Movements on reserves in the year comprised the following:
Revaluation 

Reserve
Donated 

Asset 
Reserve

Government 
Grant 

Reserve

Other 
Reserves

Income and 
Expenditure 

Reserve

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2007 as previously stated 24,304 1,333 113 0 (11,149) 14,601
Prior Period Adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 1 April 2007 as restated 24,304 1,333 113 0 (11,149) 14,601

Transfer from the income and expenditure account 7,602 7,602

Fixed asset impairments (2,763) 0 0 0 0 (2,763)

Surplus/(deficit) on other revaluations/indexation of fixed/current assets 4,774 85 9 0 0 4,868

Transfer of realised profits/(losses) to the income and expenditure reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0

Receipt of donated/government granted assets 0 33 0 0 0 33

Transfers to the income and expenditure account for depreciation, 
impairment, and disposal of donated/government granted assets 0 (183) (15) 0 0 (198)

Other transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements on reserves [specify] 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                                      

At 31 March 2008 26,315 1,268 107 0 (3,547) 24,143
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18.      Notes to the cash flow statement

18. 1  Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash flow from operating activities:

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

Total operating surplus/(deficit) 9,893 (4,972)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 4,790 3,577
Fixed asset impairments and reversals 0 0
Transfer from donated asset reserve (183) (160)
Transfer from the government grant reserve (15) (14)
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (225) (366)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors 7,098 (8,445)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors (5,848) 9,137
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (54) 65

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities before restructuring costs 15,456 (1,178)

Payments in respect of fundamental reorganisation/restructuring 0 0

Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,456 (1,178) 

18.2  Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the period 2,035 41
Cash (inflow) from new debt 0 0
Cash outflow from debt repaid and finance lease capital payments 86 115
Cash (inflow)/outflow from (decrease)/increase in liquid resources 0 0
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 2,121 156
Non - cash changes in debt 0 0
Net debt at 1 April 2007 135 (21)
Net debt at 31 March 2008 2,256 135

Page 80



Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2007/08

18.3  Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 April 2007 Cash Transferred 
(to)/from other NHS 

bodies

Other cash 
changes in year

Non-cash 
changes in year

At 31 March 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

OPG cash at bank 301 0 2,037 0 2,338
Commercial cash at bank and in hand 7 0 (2) 0 5
Bank overdraft 0 0 0 0 0
Loan from DH due within one year 0 0 0 0 0
Other debt due within one year 0 0 0 0 0
Loan from DH due after one year 0 0 0 0 0
Other debt due after one year 0 0 0 0 0
Finance leases (173) 0 86 0 (87)
Current asset investments 0 0 0 0 0

                             
135 0 2,121 0 2,256
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19. Capital Commitments

20. Post Balance Sheet Events

21. Contingencies
2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000
Contingent liabilities (7) (17)
Amounts recoverable against contingent liabilities 0 0

Net value of contingent liabilities (7) (17)

Contingent Assets 0 0

22.  Movement in Public Dividend Capital
2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000

Public Dividend Capital as at 1 April 2007 63,035 34,722
New Public Dividend Capital received (including transfers from dissolved 
NHS Trusts) 2,644 28,313
Public Dividend Capital repaid in year (7,962) 0
Public Dividend Capital written off 0 0
Public Dividend Capital issued as originating capital on new establishment 0 0
Public Dividend Capital transferred to Foundation Trust 0 -
Other movements in Public Dividend Capital in year 0 0

Public Dividend Capital as at 31 March 2008 57,717 63,035

£7,312 (2006/07 £16,625) contingency reflects the potential liability relating to Employer's liability cases as 
notified by the NHS Litigation Authority. An associated provision is shown in note 16.

Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at 31 March 2008 were £1,846,000 (31 March 2007 
£660,000).

There are no potential liabilities arising from unsettled consultant contract negotiations (2006/07 £0).

The Trust has commenced placing orders for the refurbishment of the Estate over the next 5 years. A 
contract has been entered into with the Trust's Procure 21 partner for £1,591,000. The remainder relates to 
orders placed for goods and services to be received.

On May 23rd 2008 the NHS terminated its contract with Fujitsu in respect of the implementation of the 
National Programme for IT in NHS bodies within the Southern Region.  Although the contract is held 
centrally by the Department of Heath (Connecting for Health), there may be financial implications for the 
trusts who have IT products already implemented under the contract - including the picture archiving and 
communication system, PACS. It is unclear at this juncture what the practical implications of the contract 
termination are but these may have both revenue and capital consequences.
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2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

69,509 77,502 77,056 89,547 118,418
372 (991) (7,961) (6,924) 7,602

- Timing/non-cash impacting distortions
- Use of pre - 1.4.97 surpluses [FDL(97)24 Agreements] 0 0 0 0 0
- 2004/05 Prior Period Adjustment (relating to 1997/98 to 2003/04) 0
- 2005/06 Prior Period Adjustment (relating to 1997/98 to 2004/05) 0 0
- 2006/07 Prior Period Adjustment (relating to 1997/98 to 2005/06) 0 0 0

2007/08 Prior Period Adjustment (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07) 0 0 0 0
- Other agreed adjustments 0 0 0 0 0

372 (991) (7,961) (6,924) 7,602
623 (368) (8,329) (15,253) (7,651)

2009

0

- Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover 0.54% (1.28%) (10.33%) (7.73%) 6.42% 
- Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover 0.90% (0.47%) (10.81%) (17.03%) (6.46%)

Break-even cumulative position

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

Turnover
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year
Adjustment for:

Break-even in-year position

The Trust's recovery plan, approved by the SHA aims to achieve break-even in 
2008/09.  This should be the date of the financial year end e.g. 2010.
If anticipated financial year of recovery is more than two years state the period 
agreed with SHA

The trust's breakeven performance for 2007/08 is as follows:

23.1  Breakeven Performance

23.  Financial Performance Targets

Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2007/08
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23.2 Capital cost absorption rate       
       
The Trust is required to absorb the cost of capital at a rate of 3.5% of average relevant net assets.  The 
rate is calculated as the percentage that dividends paid on public dividend capital, totalling £2,757,000, 
bears to the average relevant net assets of £77,128,000, that is 3.6%. 
       
The Trust's rate is within the materiality range of 3-4%, and has arisen due to the timing of the vertical 
integration of the estate of the former North Devon Primary Care Trust. The Trust paid an additional 
£700,000 (2006/07 £287,000) dividend to cover this change. 

       
       
          
23.3  External financing       
       
The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.    
       
   2007/08   2006/07 
 £000  £000   £000 
       
External financing limit   (7,262)   28,313 
       
Cash flow financing (7,406)     28,272 
Finance leases taken out in the year 0     0 
Other capital receipts (33)     (115) 
External financing requirement   (7,439)   28,157 
       
Undershoot/(overshoot)   177   156 

       
       
       
       
23.4  Capital Resource Limit       
       
The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to overspend    
   2007/08   2006/07 
   £000   £000 
       
Gross capital expenditure   7,470   27,333 
Less: book value of assets disposed of    0   (1,168) 
Plus: loss on disposal of donated assets   0   0 
Less: capital grants   0   0 
Less: donations towards the acquisition of fixed assets   (33)   (1,060) 
Charge against the capital resource limit   7,437   25,105 
Capital resource limit   7,437   26,035 
       
(Over)/Underspend against the capital resource limit  0   930 
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24. Related Party Transactions       
       
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State 
for Health. 
       
During the year none of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related 
to them has undertaken any material transactions with Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust. 

        
        
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the year Northern Devon Healthcare 
NHS Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the Department, and with other 
entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are listed below: 
        

Devon Primary Care Trust   
Royal Devon & Exeter Foundation NHS 
Trust 

NHS South West Strategic Health Authority  South Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 
Cornwall & Isles of Scilly Primary care Trust  South West Ambulance Service NHS Trust 
Plymouth Primary Care Trust   North Bristol NHS Trust   
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust   Devon Partnership Trust   
NHS Litigation Authority   Torbay Primary Care Trust   
NHS Supplies Authority   United Bristol Healthcare NHS Trust 
NHS Pensions Agency   National Blood Authority   

NHS Professionals   
University Hospital Birmingham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 
 
 
In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments 
and other central and local Government bodies.  Most of these transactions have been with: 

- North Devon District Council in respect of business rates; 
- Inland Revenue in respect of tax and national insurance; 
- Customs and Excise in respect of VAT payable/recoverable; 
- Devon County Council in respect of the provision of a joint community equipment store.  
        
        
The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, certain of 
the Trustees for which are also members of the NHS Trust Board.  
The audited accounts/the Summary Financial Statements of the Funds Held on Trust are included in this 
annual report and accounts.   
Transactions will need to be disclosed and reference made to the separate Trustees Report and Accounts 
for the NHS Charity.  

  
25. Private Finance Transactions 
  
25.1 PFI schemes deemed to be off-balance sheet 
 
The Trust has not undertaken any private finance transactions 
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25.2 'Service' element of PFI schemes deemed to be on-balance sheet 
 
The Trust has not undertaken any private finance transactions. 
 
 
 
26 Community Equipment Store Pooled Budget 
 
Northern Devon Healthcare Trust is a partner in a pooled budget arrangement with Devon PCT and 
Devon County Council set up under S31 of the Health Act 1999. This arrangement established a store of 
equipment for home-based care. The memorandum account of costs for the year ending 31 March 2008 
amounted to £2,667,289 (£2,181,519 2006/07) which represented an over spend of £188,203 (£238,482 
under spend 2006/07). Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust's share of these costs was £20,740 (£26,281 
benefit 2006/07). 

 
There are no balances in the balance sheet which relate to the pooled budget. 
 
The memorandum account is disclosed in note 26.1 
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26.1  Community Equipment Store Pooled Budget Memorandum Account   
         
COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICES POOLED FUND MEMORANDUM ACCOUNT  
For the period 1st April 2007 to 31st March 2008     
         
Gross Funding        
   Cash  Other  Total  
   £  £  £  
Devon County Council  1,070,930     373,998    1,444,928   
Devon PCT (less ILC) *     798,070         798,070   
NDHCT       236,088         236,088   
         
TOTAL FUNDING   2,105,088     373,998    2,479,086   
         
* ILC - Independent Living Centre, £36,772 contribution funded directly    
NB: The funding and expenditure does not include £0.200m capital funding contributed by Devon County Council and 
Devon Primary Care Trust for specific assets (these are excluded from the stock valuation). 
         
Expenditure        
   Cash  Other  Total  
   £  £  £  
New equipment   1,584,023     240,248    1,824,271   
Deliveries and associated costs  1,062,956      1,062,956   
Infrastructure         6,000     133,750       139,750   
Increase in stock value -  359,688     -   359,688   
         
TOTAL EXPENDITURE  2,293,291     373,998    2,667,289   
         
NET OVER/(UNDER) SPEND         188,203   
         
NB: The overspend will be split based on the basic cash contributions to the Pool, adjusted for ILC contributions, as 
follows: 
 DCC   -       94,101     
 NDHCT   -       20,740     
 Devon PCT  -       73,362     
    -     188,203     
Minor adaptations are not included in this statement as it refers to a DCC element of the service only. 
        
Assets and liabilities - as at 31 March 2008    
The value of surplus equipment held in the CES store and of hoists on loan to clients. The payments still to be made at 
year end. 
    Stock value  Liabilities  
    £    
Devon County Council        634,088      143,990   
NDHCT          139,753        31,735   
Devon PCT         494,335      112,255   
        
Total stock as 31 March 2008     1,268,176      287,980   
        
CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER/DIRECTOR OF FINANCE  
        
I certify that the above pooled fund memorandum account accurately discloses the income received and expenditure 
incurred in accordance with the partnership agreement, as amended by any subsequent agreed variations, entered into 
under section 31 of the Health Act 1999. 

Signed                                   Date 17 June 2008 
Chief Financial Officer/Director of Finance     
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27 Financial Instruments

FRS 13, Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the role that financial 
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking 
its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Trust has with local 
Primary Care Trusts and the way those Primary Care Trusts are financed, the NHS Trust is not exposed 
to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Also financial instruments play a much more 
limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of the listed companies to which FRS 13 
mainly applies.  The NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets 
and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the 
risks facing the NHS Trust in undertaking its activities.

As allowed by FRS 13, debtors and creditors that are due to mature or become payable within 12 
months from the balance sheet date have been omitted from all disclosures other than the currency 
profile.  Provisions should be shown gross.  Any amount expected in reimbursement against a provision 
(and included in debtors) should be separately disclosed.

Liquidity risk

The NHS Trust's net operating costs are incurred under annual service agreements with local Primary 
Care Trusts, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament.  The Trust also largely 
finances its capital expenditure from funds made available from Government under an agreed borrowing 
limit.  Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Interest-Rate Risk

100% of the Trust's financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of interest.  
Northern Devon NHS Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest-rate risk.  The following two 
tables show the interest rate profiles of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities:
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27.1 Financial Assets
Non-interest 

bearing

Currency 

Total Floating 
rate

Fixed rate Non-
interest 
bearing

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Weighted 
average period 
for which fixed

Weighted 
average term 

£000 £000 £000 £000 % Years Years 
At 31 March 2008
Sterling 2,605 0 2,343 262 0.00% 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0
Gross financial assets 2,605 0 2,343 262

At 31 March 2007
Sterling 638 0 308 330 0.00% 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0
Gross financial assets 638 0 308 330

27.2 Financial Liabilities
Non-interest 

bearing

Currency 

Total Floating 
rate

Fixed rate Non-
interest 
bearing

Weighted 
average 

interest rate

Weighted 
average period 
for which fixed

Weighted 
average term 

£000 £000 £000 £000 % Years Years 
At 31 March 2008
Sterling 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0
Gross financial liabilities 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2007
Sterling (58) 0 (58) 0 0.00% 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0
Gross financial liabilities (58) 0 (58) 0

Note: The public dividend capital is of unlimited term.

Fixed rate

Fixed rate
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Book Value Fair Value Basis of fair 
valuation

£000 £000

2,343 2,343

- Agreements with commissioners to cover creditors and provisions 262 242 Note a
0 0

2,605 2,585

0 0

- Finance leases 0 0 Note b
0 0 Note c
0 0
0 0

Notes

a

b

c

Foreign Currency Risk

To obtain fair value, cash flows have been discounted at prevailing market interest rates for finance leases for a similar term.

Overdraft 
Creditors over 1 year: 

Provisions under contract 
Loans 

Debtors over 1 year: 

Investments 

Fair value is not significantly different from book value since, in the calculation of book value, the expected cash flows have been discounted 
by the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.

Total 

These debtors reflect agreements with commissioners to cover creditors over 1 year for early retirements and provisions under contract, and 
their related interest charge/unwinding of discount.  

The Trust has no foreign currency income or expenditure.

Total 

Financial liabilities 

27.3 Fair Values

Set out below is a comparison, by category, of book values and fair values of the NHS Trust's financial assets and 
liabilities as at 31 March 2008.

Financial assets 
Cash 
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Debtors: 
amounts 

falling due 
within one 

year

Debtors: 
amounts 

falling due 
after more 

than one 
year

Creditors: 
amounts 

falling due 
within one 

year

Creditors: 
amounts 

falling due 
after more 

than one 
year

£000 £000 £000 £000
522 0 2,492 0

0 0 0 0
3,820 0 1,465 0

0 0 0 0
1,640 262 7,306 0

5,982 262 11,263 0

21 0 1,690 0
0 0 0 0

11,668 0 8,127 0
0 0 0 0

1,323 330 5,611 58

13,012 330 15,428 58

There were no cases exceeding £250,000

28 Third Party Assets

The Trust held £5,226.18 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2008 (£3,872.64 at 31 March 2007) which relates to 
monies held by the NHS Trust on behalf of patients.  This has been excluded from cash at bank and in hand figure 
reported in the accounts.

29 Intra-Government and Other Balances

Balances with other Central Government Bodies
Balances with Local Authorities
Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Balances with bodies external to government

At 31 March 2008

Balances with other Central Government Bodies
Balances with Local Authorities
Balances with NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Balances with bodies external to government

At 31 March 2007

30 Losses and Special Payments

There were 34 cases of losses and special payments (2006/07: 19 cases) totalling £44,990 (2006/07: £23,477) paid 
during 2007/08.
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